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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
hereby present the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

REVIEW AND RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the
provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of mechanical
ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system for various types
of private and public building projects including infrastructural,
commercial and residential building projects in Hong Kong and
Macau.

In 2021, while we witnessed the global economy staying on the
recovery track, the momentum has slowed in the last quarter of
2021 amid the surge in Delta and Omicron variant infections. Despite
Hong Kong also recorded a visible recovery in its economy in 2021,
the recovery had been uneven across different industries and the
lingering of the COVID-19 pandemic has continued to impact on
the general economy of Hong Kong and Macau. There has been
prolonged delay on tendering process for works in both public and
private sectors and keen competition in the construction market. The
sporadic outbreaks of a more contagious but less virulent Omicron
COVID-19 variant in Hong Kong and other parts of China towards
the end of 2021 has continued to cast uncertainties over the longer-
term economic outlook, and hinder the pace of recovery in the Hong
Kong and Macau construction industry.

The total revenue of the Group decreased by approximately HK$46.4
million or 21.0% from approximately HK$221.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$174.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Gross loss of the Group was
approximately HK$7.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
while gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$41.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group holds a cautious view on the recovery
of the construction sector and related industries in Hong Kong
and Macau for 2022. The recent exponential outbreak of the
Omicron variant prompted the Hong Kong government to impose
the strictest social distancing measures to-date, bringing a halt to
a wide range of business activities in the city and posing a setback
to the recovery of local economy. The fifth wave of COVID-19
infections has led to temporary suspension of construction works in
Hong Kong in February and March 2022, and disruption in cross-
border transportation has resulted in delay in delivery of construction
materials. Prolonged uncertainties over the pandemic and stricter
containment measures set to weigh on business sentiment and put
pressure on the local economy and the construction industry in the
near term. The financial results of the Group for the year ending
2022 may potentially be affected as a result of the aforementioned
uncertainties. Nonetheless, the Group will stay vigilant and continue
to drive sustainable growth by constantly reviewing its business and
tendering strategies and enhancing its operational efficiency, with a
view to creating long-term value to shareholders and investors of the
Company.

A NOTE OF APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to express
my deep gratitude to our Shareholders, clients, business partners,
suppliers and subcontractors for their continuous support. |
would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the Group'’s
management and staff for their commitment, contribution and
dedication throughout the years.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Chung Chi Keung
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review and Outlook

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system
for various types of private and public building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau.

The lingering of the COVID-19 pandemic has continued to negatively
impact on the general economy of Hong Kong and Macau. There has
been prolonged delay on tendering process for works in both public
and private sectors and keen competition in the construction market.
The sporadic outbreaks of a more contagious but less virulent
Omicron COVID-19 variant in Hong Kong and other parts of China
towards the end of 2021 has continued to cast uncertainties over the
longer-term economic outlook, and hinder the pace of recovery in
the Hong Kong and Macau construction industry.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Relevant Period”),
the Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$21.8 million and a
decrease in revenue of approximately 21.0% as compared to the
corresponding period in 2020. As mentioned in the announcement
of the Company dated 7 March 2022, the Group’s result had been
materially affected by prolonged completion of various projects of
the Group leading to overrun of project costs and a drop in number
of ongoing projects undertaken by the Group which were revenue
generating during the Relevant Period. This coupled with an increase
in the subcontracting charges in the Relevant Period has primarily
contributed to the loss suffered by the Group. It is expected that the
Group will continue to face challenges brought by prolonged delay
in the tendering process, fierce competition in securing tenders for
future projects from competitors with aggressive pricing strategies
and a rising material costs, subcontracting charges and labour costs.
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Looking ahead, the Group holds a cautious view on the recovery
of the construction sector and related industries in Hong Kong
and Macau for 2022. The recent exponential outbreak of the
Omicron variant prompted the Hong Kong government to impose
the strictest social distancing measures to-date, bringing a halt to
a wide range of business activities in the city and posing a setback
to the recovery of local economy. The fifth wave of COVID-19
infections has led to temporary suspension of construction works in
Hong Kong in February and March 2022, and disruption in cross-
border transportation has resulted in delay in delivery of construction
materials. Prolonged uncertainties over the pandemic and stricter
containment measures set to weigh on business sentiment and put
pressure on the local economy and the construction industry in the
near term. The financial results of the Group for the year ending
2022 may potentially be affected as a result of the aforementioned
uncertainties. Nonetheless, the Group will stay vigilant and continue
to drive sustainable growth by constantly reviewing its business and
tendering strategies and enhancing its operational efficiency, with a
view to creating long-term value to shareholders and investors of the
Company.

Financial Review
Revenue

Our revenue decreased from approximately HK$221.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$174.8 million
for the Relevant Period, representing a decrease of approximately
21.0%. The decrease in our revenue during the Relevant Period as
compared to the corresponding period in 2020 mainly due to a drop
in number of ongoing projects undertaken by the Group which were
revenue generating during the Relevant Period as a result of the
continuous outbreak of COVID-19 and the weak business sentiment.
In particular, while the Group recorded (i) an increase in revenue
of approximately HK$7.1 million from new projects (in particular
two new projects located at Kai Tak and Taipa in Macau which
collectively contributed to an increase in revenue of approximately
HK$5.9 million); and (ii) an increase in revenue of approximately
HK$110.5 million due to the increase in the amount of work under
our existing projects as compared with the year ended 31 December
2020 (in particular, the projects located at Yau Ma Tei and Tai Wai),
the aforesaid increments were offset by (i) a decrease in revenue
of approximately HK$146.8 million resulting from the completion
of certain projects during the Relevant Period; and (ii) a decrease in
revenue of approximately HK$17.2 million due to the decrease in the
amount of work under our existing projects as compared with the
year ended 31 December 2020 (in particular, the other two projects
located at Kai Tak together accounted for a decrease in revenue of
approximately HK$16.6 million).
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Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales increased from approximately HK$179.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$182.0
million for the Relevant Period, representing an increase of
approximately 1.3%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in our subcontracting charges as a result of unexpected
prolonged completion of the Group’s certain projects during the
Relevant Period.

Gross Loss/Profit and Gross Loss/Profit Margin

Gross loss of the Group was approximately HK$7.2 million for the
Relevant Period while gross profit of the Group was approximately
HK$41.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The change
was mainly driven by the combined effect of decrease in revenue and
increase in cost of sales for the Relevant Period as discussed above.

The overall gross loss margin was approximately 4.1% for the Relevant
Period while gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
18.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such turnaround was
primarily attributable to (i) the combined effect of the decrease in
revenue and increase in subcontracting charges as mentioned above,
and (i) the substantial completion of our project located at Chek Lap
Kok in 2020 (under which the Group could charge a higher premium
due to a tight construction schedule imposed by the customer).
In addition, due to the increase in subcontracting charges, a few
projects recorded losses for the Relevant Period.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$1.5
million, or approximately 9.8%, from approximately HK$15.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$16.8
million for the Relevant Period, mainly attributable to the increase in
the staff costs.
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Expenses in Relation to the Transfer of Listing

The Company submitted an application for a transfer of listing from
GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Proposed
Transfer of Listing”) on 14 May 2020 and the said application was
renewed on 23 November 2020. Nonetheless, the Company has
decided not to proceed further with the Proposed Transfer of Listing,
details of which have been set out in the announcement of the
Company published on 25 May 2021.

During the Relevant Period, our Group recognised non-recurring
professional service fees of approximately HK$0.4 million (2020:
HK$4.4 million) in connection with the Proposed Transfer of Listing.

Income Tax Credit/Expense

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately HK$3.1
million for the Relevant Period while the Group recorded income
tax expense of approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such change was primarily attributable to the loss
before tax for the Relevant Period as compared with profit before tax
for the corresponding period in 2020.

Loss/Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our Group recognised a loss of
approximately HK$21.8 million for the Relevant Period as compared
with a profit of approximately HK$22.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2020.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$188.1 million (2020: approximately HK$216.6 million), which
is financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (comprising
share capital and reserves) of approximately HK$75.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$91.8 million) and approximately HK$113.1 million
(2020: approximately HK$124.8 million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings (including bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts) of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$38.2 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$26.8
million as at 31 December 2021. Current ratio increased from 2.3
times as at 31 December 2020 to approximately 2.5 times as at 31
December 2021.
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The Group’s borrowing and bank balances are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations during the year.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities by total equity at
the year-end date, decreased from approximately 31.7% as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 24.5% as at 31 December
2021, primarily due to (i) the decrease in the total interest-bearing
borrowings; and (ii) the decrease in total equity resulting from the
decrease in retained earnings attributable to recording a net loss for
the Relevant Period.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The management of the Company considers that the following are
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group:

(i)  the outbreak of any pandemic such as COVID-19 pandemic
could adversely affect the Group's business operations and
financial performance by potentially causing suspension of
works, delay in delivery of construction materials and other
interruption to the operation of the Group;

(i)  the business of the Group relies on successful tenders and any
failure of the Group to secure tender contracts would affect
the operations and financial results of the Group;

(i) erroneous or inaccurate estimation of project duration and
the costs involved for the determination of tender price may
adversely affect the profitability and financial performance of
the Group;

(iv) the Group’s historical revenue and profit margin may not be
indicative of its future revenue and profit margin; and

(v) any delay or defects of the works of the suppliers and
subcontractors of the Group would adversely affect its
operations and financial results.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Risks Factors” in the prospectus issued by the
Company dated 12 February 2018 (the “Prospectus”).
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Relationship with customers, suppliers, subcontractors and
employees

Customers

The Group's customers mainly include main contractors and
subcontractors of various types of building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group has maintained business relationship
with the top customers for a period ranging from approximately
2 years to over 10 years. The Directors believe the Group has
established good relationship with its customers and receives
invitations from the repeat customers to submit tenders from time to
time.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Relevant Period, the suppliers and subcontractors of
the Group included (i) suppliers of air conditioning equipment
and materials; (ii) suppliers of processing services on the Group'’s
equipment and materials; (iii) machinery rental service providers; and
(iv) subcontractors engaged by the Group to perform the site works.
The Group engaged the suppliers and subcontractors on a regular
basis.

The Group maintains an internal list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group selects suppliers based on a number
of factors such as their prices, quality of the goods and services
supplied, past performances and timeliness of delivery. While
engaging subcontractors, the Group selects the subcontractors
for a project by taking into account their availability of resources
and manpower, experience, track record, service quality, safety
performance, timeliness of delivery, reputation and fee quotations.

The Group did not encounter any material difficulty in sourcing
equipment and materials and services from our suppliers or assigning
subcontractors during the Relevant Period.

Employees

The Group respects its employees and endeavours to provide
better working conditions for its employees. We offer competitive
remuneration and a fair, flexible and transparent recruitment process
to attract and retain talents and promotes equal opportunities among
employees. Further details can also be found in section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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Capital Structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018 (the “Listing”).
Immediately upon Listing, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$5,740,000 divided into 574,000,000 Shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each. On 19 November 2021, 75,000,000 shares
of par value HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at a price
of HK$0.144 by way of placing under general mandate as detailed
below. The share capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,490,000 (2020: HK$5,740,000) divided into 649,000,000
(2020: 574,000,000) ordinary Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Placing of 75,000,000 Placing Shares under General Mandate

On 22 October 2021, the Company and Brilliant Norton Securities
Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 75,000,000 placing shares (the
“Placing Share(s)”), at a price of HK$0.144 per Placing Share (the
“Placing”). As set out in the interim report of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the Group has been facing challenges
brought by fierce competition in securing tenders for future projects
and a rising raw material costs, subcontracting charges and labour
costs brought by the continuing effect of COVID-19. In light of the
instability of the global economy and local business environment, the
Board is of the view that it is important to enable the Group to have
greater financing flexibility to replenish its cash reserve in a timely
and efficient manner to sustain the smooth operations of the Group
during the global economic downturn. In light of the above, the
Directors consider that the Placing is a suitable financing option to
raise capital for the business operations of the Group, will strengthen
the Group’s liquidity position and provide further working capital for
the Group.
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The Placing was completed on 19 November 2021 and the Placing
Agent successfully placed an aggregate of 75,000,000 Placing
Shares, representing approximately 11.56% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of 75,000,000
Placing Shares to not less than six independent placees at the
placing price of HK$0.144 per Placing Share. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Placees and their respective ultimate
beneficial owners (if any) are professional, institutional, or other
investors who are independent third parties. None of the Placees has
become a substantial shareholder of the Company immediately after
completion of the Placing.

The Placing Price of HK$0.144 per Placing Share represents (i) a
discount of approximately 14.8% to the closing price of HK$0.169
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 22 October 2021, the
last trading day; and (ii) a discount of approximately 10.6% to the
average of the closing prices per Share of approximately HK$0.161
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five consecutive trading
days immediately preceding the date of the Placing Agreement.

The gross proceeds from the Placing was approximately HK$10.8
million and the net proceeds from the Placing, after deduction of
the placing commission and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$10.2 million (representing a net issue price of
approximately HK$0.135 per Placing Share). The net proceeds for the
Placing was fully utilised as intended as the general working capital
to support the business operations of the Group during the Relevant
Period. For further information in relation to the Placing, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2021, 12
November 2021 and 19 November 2021.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any
capital commitments contracted but not provided for.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any

plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2021.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

During the Relevant Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 26 of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
Group did not have other material contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca. The Directors consider the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group is minimal and
the Group did not engage in any derivatives agreements nor commit
to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign exchange exposure
during the Relevant Period.

Pledge of Assets

Save for the pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 18 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the Group did not have other pledge of assets.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 339 (31
December 2020: 527) employees, of whom 275 (31 December
2020: 458) were labour workers nominated by subcontractors. The
decrease in the number of employees was mainly attributable to the
decrease of labour workers nominated by subcontractors resulting
from the drop in the number of on-going projects undertaken by the
Group during the Relevant Period. The relevant cost of employing
the labour workers nominated by subcontractors was classified
as subcontracting charges and the staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, of the Group were approximately HK$26.8 million for
the Relevant Period (2020: approximately HK$23.7 million).
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The Group promotes individuals based on their performance and
development potential in the positions held. In order to attract
and retain high quality staff, competitive remuneration package is
offered to employees (with reference to market norms and individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience). On top of
basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include provision of retirement benefits, medical benefits and
sponsorship of training courses.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 3 December 2021, the Board proposed that every four (4) issued
and unissued existing shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$0.04 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”).

The Share Consolidation was approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 19 January
2022 and became effective on 21 January 2022. Immediately
after the Share Consolidation becoming effective on 21 January
2022, the authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 consolidated shares
of par value HK$0.04 each, of which 162,250,000 consolidated
shares would be in issue which are fully paid or credited as fully paid.

For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022 and
the Company’s circular dated 30 December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term success
and continuing development of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures,
so as to enhance the accountability system and transparency of the
Group, protect the interests of the Company’s stakeholders and
create value for shareholders of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (version up to 31 December
2021) (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Relevant Period”), the Company has adopted and complied with,
where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that the Group’s business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner, except for Code Provision A.2.1 (which has
been re-numbered to C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company, responsible for formulating the overall business strategies
and overseeing the business and operation of the Group. Considering
that Mr. Chung has been responsible for the overall management
and operation of the Group since its inception, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Chung taking
up both roles for effective management and business development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
of the Group, formulating the Group’s overall strategic direction and
corporate governance and maintaining appropriate levels of review,
challenge and guidance in its relationship with the management. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility by
the Board for the day-to-day management and administration of the
Group.
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The Board is provided with the updates from management to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance, recent
development and prospects of the Group on a regular basis. The
Board is the ultimate decision-making body for all matters material to
the Group and discharges its responsibilities on corporate governance
either by itself or the Board Committees set out in Code Provision
D.3.1 (which has been re-numbered to A.2.1 since 1 January 2022)
of the CG Code which include the following:

1.  to develop and review the policies and practice on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

3.  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Directors and employees;
and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED") as set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 49 to 54 of
this annual report.
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In compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three INEDs representing not
less than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Board, through the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”), has assessed and considered the INEDs to
be independent during the Relevant Period in accordance with Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of our INEDs. Furthermore, all Board Committees
including the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has free and direct access to the Company’s external
auditor or independent professional adviser(s) when they consider
necessary.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other relationship
(including financial business, family, and other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board as of the date of this
report.

Diversity

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having skills, experience and expertise complementing the business
operations and development of the Group and from a variety
of backgrounds. There is diversity of education, professional
background, functional expertise, gender, age, culture and industrial
experience.
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A board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) was adopted in preparation for the Listing and amended
in December 2018 by the Board. The Board Diversity Policy sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the factors
(including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
professional experience, background, education, race, gender, age,
culture and other qualities, etc.) to be considered in determining
the composition of the Board so as to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
that are required to support the execution of its business strategy
and to maximise the Board’s effectiveness.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies, receive
management updates, approve business plans as well as financial
results and to consider other significant matters to the Group.
Management also provides updates to the Board with respect to the
business activities and development of the Group on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the Group’s
development through their constructive and informed comments. All
of the members of the Board have also disclosed and updated their
number and nature of offices held and time involved in handling the
matters of the Company on a regular basis.

During the Relevant Period, the Board had held four meetings to
approve, among other things, matters relating to the quarterly,
interim and annual financial results, the scope of services and related
fees to the external auditors and to review the business strategies
and consider the reports from each Board Committee. The Board
also considered and approved various matters, among other things,
including the engagement of consultant to internal control function,
the matters in relation to the application for a transfer of listing
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the change
of auditors, placing of new shares under general mandate and the
share consolidation which had become effective on 21 January 2022.
The Directors’ attendance records of the Board meetings held during
the Relevant Period are set out below. An annual general meeting
(“AGM") and a private meeting between the Chairman and the
INEDs as required by Code A.2.7 (which has been re-numbered to
C.2.7 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code had been held during
the Relevant Period.
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Members of the Board BEEERE

Attendance of Board and Committee Meeting, Annual General REBHEHEEEERZEEEE  KE

Meeting and Training during the Relevant Period BFAERIEINER
No. of No. of

No. of Audit Remuneration  Nomination
No. of Board Committee ~ Committee  Committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings Annual
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ General
eligible to eligible to eligible to eligible to Meeting
Name of Directors attend attend attend attend (8 June 2021) Training"o’
BliE/ B/ Y1 74 BHE/ e

RERME REREE RERLEF QERUR BEAE
Exged EBKZEE MZEEE€E REZEE (CB--F

ESpg RE BERY RE EE VN ~ANA) 3l

Executive Directors HTESR

Mr. Chung Chi Keung EEats 414 N/A 17 171 v v
TER

Ms. Lai Suk Fun BRS &L 4/4 N/A N/A N/A v v
TER TER TER

Independent Non-executive BIEHTES

Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric BERLL 4/4 4/4 17 N/A v v
TR
Mr. Lei For MR £ 4/4 4/4 N/A 171 v v
iR
Mr. Lai Wai Ming REHEE 4/4 4/4 171 171 v Note? v
Hiit2
Notes: Biat -

(1) This includes attending briefings, seminars, conferences, forum relevant to (1) B IEZMMA AR R SKINFAEM L PR BEE S H;

the directors’ duties and responsibilities, the Group’s business, development, BEREM AEEER  ¥E  REEENEE -
strategies, etc. arranged by the Company or external organisations or Ml HEE wE AHEEE EE
reading regulatory/corporate governance updates. SREFTER

(2)  Attended the AGM via tele-conference. 2 NEZEeRAFIALERRBEFAE -
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Terms of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service
agreement, and each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment
with, the Company. Both the said service agreements and letters of
appointment are for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject to
further renewal and re-election in accordance with amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from
time to time, (the “Articles”) and termination in accordance with
their respective terms. The service agreement of each executive
Director and the letter of appointment of each INED have been
renewed for another term of 3 years commencing from 27 February
2021 on the same terms and conditions.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election
at that meeting pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles.

As such, Mr. Lei For and Mr. Lai Wai Ming will retire from office as
Directors and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company which is scheduled to be held
on Wednesday, 1, June 2022 in accordance with the Articles and
relevant code provision under the CG Code.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on the terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of securities dealings regarding transactions
during the Relevant Period. The Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors during the Relevant Period.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors to extend and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
developments of the Company.

The Directors are fully aware of the requirement under the Code
Provision A.6.5 (which has been re-numbered to C.1.4 since 1
January 2022) of the CG Code regarding professional development.
During the Relevant Period, the Company had provided and
circulated regulatory updates and training materials to the Directors
from time to time to ensure that all Directors keep abreast of the
latest development in the regulatory areas relating to the Group.
All Directors had provided their training records during the Relevant
Period to the Company. Details of the training records are set out on
page 21 of this annual report.

Board Committees

The Board established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
by resolutions of Directors passed on 31 January 2018, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees were
established with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant code provisions of the CG Code, which are available at
the GEM's website (www.hkgem.com) and the Company’s website
(www.wingfunggroup.com).

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses. The duties and work done by the foregoing
Board committees for the Relevant Period are detailed below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 31 January 2018. The Audit
Committee currently consists of three members, namely Mr. Choy
Hiu Fai Eric, Mr. Lei For and Mr. Lai Wai Ming, all of whom are our
INEDs. Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric is the chairman of the Audit Committee,
who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment and removal of external auditor; review financial
statements/information of the Company and judgments in respect of
financial reporting; oversee the effectiveness of the procedures of the
internal control procedures and risk management of the Group; and
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held during the Relevant
Period. Details of the attendance records of each Audit Committee’s
member are set out on page 21 of this annual report. During
the said meetings, the Audit Committee had reviewed and made
recommendations on various matters including the annual, interim
and quarterly financial results and the respective financial reporting
of the Group, status on the internal control, financial control and
risk management, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, discussed with the
management and the external auditor on the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, the auditor’s independence
status of, audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor and
re-appointment of the external auditor. The Committee also reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board regarding the engagement
of consultant to the internal control function and change of auditor
during the Relevant Period. More information about the internal
control and risk management can be found on pages 28 to 29 of this
annual report.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and was of the opinion that the said audited consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the
applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee members also met
the external auditor in the absence of the executive Directors and
management to discuss the audit related matters.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 31 January 2018. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three members and is chaired by an INED and
comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with the requirements
under Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. This includes Mr. Lai Wai
Ming who is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr.
Choy Hiu Fai Eric, both of whom are our INEDs, and our executive
Director, Mr. Chung.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors, senior management and
general staff of the Group assessing the performance of executive
Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and to ensure that none of the Directors or any their
associates determine their own remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period to review the remuneration structure of the Directors.
Details of the attendance records of each Remuneration Committee
members are set out on page 21 of this annual report.

Directors and Senior Management’s Remuneration

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5. (which has been re-numbered to
E.1.5) of the CG Code, the remuneration of the members of the
senior management (other than the Directors) whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021 by band is set out below.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 31 January 2018.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members and is chaired
by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with
the requirements under Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.
This includes Mr. Lei For who is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Lai Wai Ming, both of whom are our INEDs, and
our executive Director, Mr. Chung.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually by reference to
the factors as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members; assess independence
of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors with reference to the Nomination Policy.

To enhance the nomination process for a director candidate, a
Nomination Policy was adopted as a guidance on the selection
process and board succession planning. The Nomination Committee
utilises various methods for identifying director candidates, including
recommendations from the Board members, management, and
professional search firms and may review of resume and job history,
conduct personal interviews and verification of professional and
personal references or perform the background checks, etc. On
evaluation of the director candidates including incumbents and
candidates nominated by the Shareholders, the Board and the
Nomination Committee will take into account whether a candidate
has the qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc.
that can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors and may consider the
following qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new Director, or
the continued service of existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

o skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

o the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;
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o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required of a member of the Board and the commitment
of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities; and

o independence as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess
the independence of the INEDs and make recommendation on
the re-election of the Directors at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 8 June 2021. The Nomination Committee
also reviewed the terms of appointment for the Directors and
recommended to the Board for approval.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy and its implementation can
be found on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report. Details of the
attendance records of each Nomination Committee member are set
out on page 21 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Pak Hin Edward was appointed as Company Secretary
of the Company on 14 February 2017. Please refer to the section
“Biographical details of Directors and Senior Management” for his
biographical information.

During the Relevant Period, Mr. Law undertook more than 15 hours
of professional training as required by the Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules to update his skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
should be selected and applied consistently.

The statement of external auditor about its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 73 to 80 of this annual report.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEERRE

THREZQKEMANBEETANE
TREEEMBNRELESD &

o EBGEM EMRAMRERIBILIE -

REBBHE RHEZEERT-RG&E AU
2 LR ERMNEETSRE RERAK
%Eﬁjﬁﬁﬁ§$2ﬁiﬁ&m$ Gk
—== Eﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ THRRBEFKRE L
HREFEERHER RLZBSENEHE
%%Emﬁﬁlﬁ%$A¢ﬁﬁ%Mhﬂﬁﬁo

EZSZTUEBEREAEBBANANFRSE9
HE2R RZZBEEXNEMHFCEH
MAFHRE21H -

NCIEE

BREMEER_FT—tF_AT+HAEZE
REARBZRBWE - FRABRELEZEESR
B #2REE SR EREZEEHE]
—Hi e

RAEBER  BELABREGM EHHERE
SASIERRIE - BX TEBB 5@/ EHEZE
Bl LABETE R RE R A o

EERIBLRBARYBREREA
AEZERE

EEHAHEARREATFREERRAEE
RRLZABREAZEE - RRBEEERF
ZHBERE  EERRA R ZEFEE
LREZE -

BRSNS R B 47 & M WA AR 2
RHRETZBABNAFRETZEAZE
AR EED IR



28

SUEBTNERA R
—=

- - FEH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TLEERRS

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Board recognises the importance of good
internal control procedures including the procedures for handling
and dissemination of inside information and its effectiveness in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests. The Group has strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside information or
any use of such information for the advantage of any individual. The
Board also acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and discharges its responsibilities to
oversee management in design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control system and its
effectiveness. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee will
review of the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control system and its effectiveness and report to the Board
on a regular basis and at least annually.

The Group also established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying the analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
More information about the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group can be found on page 11 of this annual report.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance covering the
Group’s operation processes relating to subcontract, purchase and
expenditure and human resources, etc. and overseen their operations
by the senior management. In view of the size and business nature
of the Group, the Company does not establish a standalone internal
audit function but has engaged an external independent consultant
to review and assess our internal control systems (including financial,
operational and management systems, compliance and governance
matters) during the Relevant Period. No material internal control
deficiency was identified by the external consultant and the Group’s
management had worked with the external consultant to enhance
the Group’s internal control system.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The external internal control consultant
also reported to the Audit Committee on their factual findings and
recommendation for improvements on our internal control systems
over the above-mentioned processes and procedures.

REEZER AR EE

AEEREZERARTFABERREF (B
BRENEMATBENEF) RESREERER
BamBANERE AREEERERER
ARZSIARBEELNAZFBEEREMA
TREF G EFETAREHRBREIER
NEEHEFRNEE AERTEEERRE
BERAMEHRGER  BREREZEUR
HEMUETHENBE KLEFSREERZ
EelEMAELBF - REBEMARAGH
B RREERAREERRREE
Mt IAEEFE®RSE -

AEEREFE —EREREREE KA o
AEENRBREERFARARERHN—KRB
BHRHANEEER TERTBEENER
B -BEeLSREEEATH RSN
HERAREEENAR RERTEER
BB s8I FE R AR E RN - BRIAEE
HENTERB N IAEERAENEZER
FLEAFERFEIIE -

REBREANEEES BEAEEED
B RBEEXEH URANEREBBNE
ERF THRREREEEHERE - ERN
AEBORBRREBUEE  ARARLARRTL
B A RRE AT REE - MR RSN E B -
RBEARAEZ LA ERMANAEEER
S(EREVE BEREERS 6HRREAR
) S EPEMY EEAMEIE RGP ER
EATRZE  ANEBEONEIERERINEDREM
BFAE RAANSBEAMEZRS -

REBHE BEXZEeUAKERRER
KRB ES IR B E BRI ETTER - SNER
MELTBENTAEZEZEG2HR  HATHE
PREEIREE N - LA R 3t b 2t ;7 B B2 42 ) 2 19
mAz AR IR HBUE R -



The Group has implemented the necessary internal control measures
based on the recommendation of the external internal control
consultant. The external internal control consultant confirmed such
modified and new internal control procedures are satisfactorily
implemented upon the conduct of follow-up review. The Audit
Committee was satisfied and considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control procedures are sufficient to meet
the Company’s needs in its current business environment and in
terms of practicability.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy as a guidance on the
payment of the dividend. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into
account the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, as well as statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. And the Board will
review from time to time the suitability of a dividend proposal with
the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance that
dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited is the external auditor of the Company which
was appointed by the Board on 29 October 2021 following the
resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers on the same date.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the resignation, appointment or re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, which is subject to the approval by
the Board and/or at the general meetings of the Company by its
shareholders. The Audit Committee would consider various factors
including the independence, experience and qualification of auditor,
their fee, terms of engagement and staffing plan for recommendation
to the Board for the appointment or re-appointment of the auditor
of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid or payable in
respect of the statutory audit services and non-audit services of the
Group are as follows:

BE_T-_—H+-_A=+t—HIEEE K

KEEEEZRE KOFRR RO E (-

NERMT

Fee paid or payable for services rendered
FRERENESRESER
FY2021 FY2020
—BBEE Z—Z-THHFE

Statutory audit services ETBZRE
Non-audit services for tax advisory W ANIEE R RS
Fee in relation to the transfer of listing EiR FTER

680 1,100
22 68
- 500

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

General Meeting

As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at Shareholders’
meeting on each substantial issue including the re-election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’
meeting will be conducted by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules and the poll voting results will be published on the
GEM website (www.hkgem.com) and the Company’s website
(www.wingfunggroup.com). During the Relevant Period, an AGM
of the Company was held on 8 June 2021 to seek the Shareholders’
approval on, among other things, the granting the general mandates
to issue and repurchase the Company’s shares and re-election of the
Directors. The Board member’s attendance record is set out in page
21 to this annual report.

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 1 June
2022 and notice of the meeting will be sent to the Shareholders in
accordance with the relevant requirements under the Articles.

BRREMNRREEBE
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Procedures and Right for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") are subject to the
Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulation, in particular
the GEM Listing Rules:

1. If any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the
general meetings of the Company, such Shareholder(s) may
submit a written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three
(3) months after the deposit of such requisition.

2. The Board should within 21 days from the date of the deposit
for the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to the
held within a further 21 days. If the Board fails to do so,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 12 of the Articles.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above procedures
may write to the company secretary of the Company at Unit D,
21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or election
of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election as a Director
at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit D, 21/F., Tower B,
Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the Company.
Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company can be found on the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com).

Procedure for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at Shareholders’ meeting under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures and Rights for Shareholders to
Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” set out above.

Investors Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels
including general meetings and corporate communications such as
announcements, quarterly, interim and annual reports and circulars.
Latest information of the Group is also available on the Company’s
website.

The Company has adopted its Shareholders’ communications
policy. Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors and all
stakeholders are welcomed. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit D, 21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Such written enquires
or proposal with full name, contact details and identification must
deposit and send to said address.

Any enquires in relation to the Company’s shareholdings, share
transfer or registration may contact the Company’s share registrar.
Their contact details are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company first adopted its memorandum and articles of
association on 29 September 2016. Save for the adoption of the
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing on 31 January 2018,
during the Relevant Period, there had been no significant changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company. The latest version
of the memorandum and articles of association of the Company is
available at the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG
concepts and practices in achieving sustainable development for
the future. The Group is pleased to present its fifth ESG report for
the reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
("Reporting Period”), which demonstrates the Group’s approach and
performance in terms of ESG management and corporate sustainable
development for the Reporting Period.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. An assessment of the applicability and materiality of
the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”) under the ESG
Reporting Guide had been conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The following principles are adopted in the Report:

o Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues
with results approved by the Board.

o Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information is
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided
with narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

o Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise specified,
to allow for meaningful comparisons.

o Balance: The information is presented without the inappropriate
use of selections, omissions or other forms of manipulation that
would influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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GOVERNANCE ON ESG ASPECTS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are
in place. Our management are delegated the responsibility of
coordinating the implementation of the Group’s environment,
employment and service quality assurance policies.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting
ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation and
monitoring ESG performance. The Board continues to explore ways
to further strengthen the ESG governance of the Group. The Board
reviews ESG affairs regularly, including environmental protection,
employment and labour practices, operating practices, and
community investment, and implements appropriate measures to
enhance the ESG performance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group actively engages with stakeholders to identify ESG issues
that need to be addressed. Stakeholder engagement is the process
by which an organisation involves parties who may be affected by
the decision it makes or can influence the implementation of its
decisions. The management had performed the following:

o generated a full and complete list of stakeholders by consulting
various departments within the Group;

o relied on the on-going communication channels and day-to-
day interactions and dedicated meetings (whenever deemed
necessary) to engage these stakeholders; and
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. reduced the list of stakeholders into a workable size, and e BiOEREFEREAIITRIE  WEK

complete the Stakeholder Influence — Dependency Matrix to (AL - KBRREEEE)GE—H
work out a list of key stakeholders. FTERMHERE -
Stakeholders Communication channels
BH& BERE
Government/regulatory organisations * Announcement and other regulatory reports
Bt/ EE#E o RERAMEERS
Shareholders/ investors ¢ Information disclosed on the HKEX website and corporate website
¢ Annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meetings
BE/BREE o ERXMBURATBUE EREOER

¢ BREFAEREMBRNE

Employees * Employee performance evaluation
o On-the-job training
¢ Internal e-mail

EE o EERRE

o R

. ABEH
Customer ¢ Corporate website

o Customer service hotline
2P o DA

o BFRBEAR

Community e Industry events
¢ Corporate social responsibility activities
) e TTXEE

s BEHERMEED




MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has evaluated a number RIREHHE  AEBBEFEZERE 4
of environmental, social and operating items, and assessed their K&BIEE r WEBRZBREFTHEEEHD
importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels. & K& A% @ & E M4 o 218 T {H A B R A
This assessment helps to ensure that the Group’s business objectives SEBEFBEIZENERE HRAFTAFMHEHEE
and development direction satisfy with the stakeholders’ expectations N B3k - REE R {HE B T M EEEH DA
and requirements. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters of concern ~ NEZE 4B F :

are listed out in the following materiality matrix:

External assessment (Impact on stakeholders)
SRR (HEBRENTE)

ATl:
A2:
A3:

A4:

Crucial
ZHEE

Not relevant

TR

Not relevant
THEE

Environmental 2833

Use of resources & J&1# F

The environment and natural resource
RERRAEIR

Climate change &1L

Sustainability Materiality Matrix
AREEEMER

Crucial
EHEE

Internal assessment (impact on business)

RIS (HRBHE)

B1:
B2
B3:

B4:
B5:
B6:
B7:
B8:

Employment {2 &

Health and safety f# FEEH % &
Development and training

R IET

Labour standards % T %8I

Supply chain management f£ fi& §& & 32
Product responsibility 2 & & T
Anti-corruption X &35

Community investment £t [& 1% &
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group does not have any factory operations nor engage in
any operations that have a substantial effect on the environment,
aside from consumption of resources by the office administrative
operations. Nevertheless, the Group pays due consideration and
effort towards compliance with applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and Macau, and actively cooperate with the main
contractor in meeting the environmental protection requirements.
The majority of the work of the Group is conducted through its
sub-contractors, whereby as part of the project delivery, apart from
confirming construction quality, the project team will also monitor
the environmental performance of its subcontractors. One of the
measures includes regularly check to ensure that environmental
protection requirements imposed upon various parties, including the
main contractor, the construction site, and the Group, are met.

Emissions management

As a subcontractor for the provision of supply, installation and
fitting-out services of MVAC systems for buildings in Hong Kong
and Macau, the installation activity does not cause any material
emissions or pollution generated from the Company’s operations at
construction sites.

In order to minimise the production of air pollutants by motor
vehicles, the Group promotes the use of public transport and car-
pooling.

Air emissions

FREHHE

5

BRTHMAETHREENERHEREIN  AEH
W FEE EE  MEESTMHIREE
RERXZENER - BEWL  AKEEH
FEFZBAL BN ETEE MRPIRERAR
FOEfR RS EREARERSEETRIE
RERTE AEBAFD TIREAESBEH
T MIERBEBRXNMN—8D BT HER
ETRREN REEGKTEEEESER
MIRRAR - B —HEEE R T HREN
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EREER B MRFIREHBTEMER K= A
EFHEE ZRERXERGODEHE L
KEPHUEEHRARANERMBNEBE
EEMERFRE TR -

RBESEMEENZERGRY  AEER
BERARBR AT -

Unit 2021 2020
B =t —g-zs

Nitrogen oxides

k=

Sulphur oxides

=Y (47

Respiratory suspended particles
AT IR A SRR F

g 1,455 2,213
N

g 21 32
N

9 107 163
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Greenhouse gas emissions Unit 2021 2020
BRERBHEK B —E--F —TTF
Scope 1 - petrol consumption Tonne 3.5 5.4
F1R-BIHRER NI
Scope 2 — electricity consumption Tonne 10.3 1.4
F2R-BESN NI
Total emissions Tonne 13.8 16.8
BYENME NI
Emission intensity Tonne per million dollars of revenue 0.08 0.08
BHRERE N ER Yl €

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any
non-compliance in relation to air pollution, water pollution, waste
and chemical waste that would have a significant impact on the
environment.

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

The major source of waste comes from construction works, whereby
the Group abides by the regulations imposed by the main contractor
and the respective site. The staff and work team follow on-site
regulations on waste disposal, and would always inquire with the
project management team when any difficulties are encountered. The
project team would also ensure the compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 359 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary regulations, particularly the Waste
Disposal (Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) and the Waste
Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations.

Although the operation does not involve handling hazardous waste
directly, we also establish policies and guidelines for both our staff
and our sub-contractors, for example, hazardous waste is stored
separately in special containers before being collected by a licenced
chemical waste collector.

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office. The operation of the Group
does not involve any production of hazardous waste. All materials
and wastes disposed at the worksites are collected by the authorised
collectors by the local government. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not notice any non-compliance issues about waste
disposal.
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Use of resources BiRER

Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group strives ~NEREEREF A FHERE N ERAX
to ensure efficient use of resources, including energy, materials and B &R » BIEER - DE MW EHE - &K
auxiliary materials. It is the Group’s policy that material ordered is & B % & B 58 FE1R 51 B8 60 W06 Ml 45 R (B3R 2
‘just right’ for the intended project, and the Group endeavours to 8 H @ KEB IR NER ZHDE R DR
employ excess material to reduce wastage. In view of the pandemic, & - #ERZE » #t A =17 EEPFI B AT
the office administration had maximised the office’s air circulation FMIEKEEARZAEZEZINPLAENER
by opening the windows instead of relying on the air-conditioning 73 ° SR A KB KL F AR IE S5 S /T H
system. Decreased petrol usage was as a result of taking public FAEH A - BEAREK  TTHBFAEF TN E
transportation and the use of video-conferencing. Going forward, REFREZEREHKIK -

the administration would focus on ensuring resources wastage is at a

minimum.

During the Reporting Period, our office in Hong Kong has been WM REHE - RPN EEREREBERE —
moved to a commercial unit whereby water service (such as tap and &3 £ {7k AR 7 (40 £k 73 72K K2 JB P 3% 48 B9 74
toilet facilities) is not available. Therefore, water consumption is no ~ ¥8f7 c Rt A/KETH FIATE -

longer measurable.

Intensity (per million

Resources utilisation Unit Consumption dollars of revenue)
EREA B HEE ZE(BRETWE)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F ZTEF —E-—-F —E-TE
Electricity kWh 26,533 22,432 152 101
B FRE
Water Tonne - 62 - 0.3
7K NI
Unleaded petrol L 1,299 1,975 7 9
)T Ft

As the operation of the Group does not produce any tangible RIS AR ANEEBNEK T TEET
products that require packaging during the Reporting Period, hence (1% Z B KM A E T A UL I £ 5 1 F B
no packaging materials were used in this regard. FRBEDE -

The Group has implemented the following schemes to reduce AEBEE B THRELBKEREESARE
consumption of energy and natural resources: TR B RE -

e encourage duplex printing and reuse single-side printed paper; o  SE)EEIEINERS BN

e idle electrical appliances are switched off; e HENMEAMNERS

e regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances to o  TFHIRE NGB SEUREKERRE

lower energy waste;
e reduce the use of disposable and non-recyclable products and e  RAUEREERMAEWMER &

e regular maintenance and inspection of company vehicles. s THRERBRENTIEEH -
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Environmental and natural resources

There are several environmental concerns that are of particular
relevance, affecting the materials and services used by the Group,
such as, air conditioning, refrigeration and heat pump technologies
which are increasingly switching to more environmentally friendly
refrigerant gases with lower ozone depletion potential and lower
global warming potential. The Group is determined to stay abreast
of development in resources and technologies benefitting the
environment with the higher requirements being imposed on MVAC
equipment and installation process. In delivering the works, the
project team would ensure that all services are conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner and ensure strict adherence
to the applicable laws in Hong Kong and Macau, such as the Noise
Control Ordinance (Chapter 40 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Several other specific regulations directly related to the operations,
including the requirement of using lead-free solders for copper
pipes at freshwater Inside Services, are specified in the standard
as stipulated in the Waterworks Regulations. Another regulation
example that the Group complies with is the VOC regulation imposed
by the Environmental Protection Department. VOCs (volatile organic
compounds) are found in a wide variety of everyday products such
as solvent-based paints/coatings, adhesives, sealants, printing inks,
many consumer products, organic solvents and petroleum products.

Climate Change

Building operations, including cooling, account for a significant
portion of the world’s total greenhouse gas emissions. As historically
abnormal climates, hotter summers and colder, longer winters became
the new norm, demand for air conditioning, its efficiency, and its
impact on sustainability became increasingly crucial. We recognise
the impact of operations of air conditioning. It uses a significant
amount of electricity and has the potential to leak potent greenhouse
gases into the atmosphere. The production processes of and material
used in the production of insulation material, pipings, could also have
a significant impact on the environment.
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Since the establishment of our firm, we have always been keen and
eager to adopt innovations and paradigms, and sustainability has
always been among our top priorities. Considerations of how the
installations could impact the environment and how it could cope
with the climate changes have been intrinsically embedded in our
business models. Each member of our team provides constructive
feedback and advice at every step of the installation, including
design, supplier screening, installation. Though it will be possible to
tease out individual steps relevant to sustainability, for efficiency, we
would highlight and summarise our endeavours into three key areas,
research and training, open discussions and timely feedback, due
diligence. The key in managing climate risk, we believe, lies in the
mindset of our team.

Environmental Targets Setting

FY 2021 Reviewed the Group’s past environmental
performance

FY 2022 Explore improvement methods and resources
available

Develop measures and set targets
Evaluate and monitor performance against
baseline and targets regularly

FY 2023 onwards
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SOCIAL HE
Employment &%

The Group promotes equal opportunity and opposes any form of ZAEBHEREFE# S - AR BB E
discrimination in the hiring process. Personal attributes like race, RFEAMER - fEjk - R0 B F
religion, nationality, age or gender are not considered in the hiring S MRISEAREZL T &5 A BIERF R
process. Besides discrimination, any act of sexual harassment is also & & 2%l B 7 RN - T I IRERAEZE LT
strictly prohibited. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 5 (2020: fABET A R-_T-_—F+-_A=+—
5) directors and 334 (2020: 522) employees, including 275 (2020: B AEBASZ (T -_TF :5Z8)EFN
458) labour workers nominated by sub-contractors. The table below 334& (ZZE-ZF :522%)EE  BFEHE
shows the details of our workforce distribution: IR EH275% (ZE_TF 458K )BT o
TRIREIDMHES -

No. of staff
ETAE
Gender 145
Male B 320
Female ik 19
Age Group FhA 5
19-40 19572 40 5% 142
41-60 41 ZE605% 152
61 or above 615 £ 45
Geographical region BB
Macau pel] 322
Hong Kong BB 17
Employment type EIER
Full-time 28 338
Part-time R 1

The Group welcomes any age range of people to join the Group as R EEBELEZF R H  AEBEDT
long as they are keen to learn and participate. Although the Group REFREM A TNAREE - EEAEBT
treated all application irrespective of gender, due to the laborious s MBI F S YA T EHBHAE  BhRN BB
nature of the majority of their operation at the construction sites, the B KEBND LEBL M T 1E - M AZHEE
majority of the potential and successful application tends to be male. &K EEEER A B o
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The Group strives to maintain employee turnover rate at an
acceptable level so as to facilitate the accumulation of professional
skills and experience. During the Reporting Period, the permanent
staff turnover rate was about 14 %, which was categorised by
gender, age group and geographical location as follows:

AEBEHNHKE TREB R ERE R EXHK
FoUREEERERKERNER - RBS
HE RHUETIRFENR14% @ RIEH
FleAAR KB iR S RMAT

Gender Age Group Location
4 5l FiE B i &
Male Female 19-40 41-60 61 or above Hong Kong Macau
St g3 1952405 412605 615 £ g8 - 1]
16% - 23% 4% - 16% 6%
Compensation and dismissal H1E R e

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain
talented staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically to ensure consistency with the employment market. Laws
and regulations on minimum wage and statutory social benefits
are required to be followed. Dismissal is required to comply with
employment laws and regulations, and to follow the internal policies
and procedures, including policy on prevention of dismissal purely on
employees’ gender, marital status, pregnancy, disability, age or family
status.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent
recruitment strategy. The recruitment process includes the application
for recruitment, description of the position, collection of job
applications, interview, selection, approval, and job offers. Promotion
is based on performance and suitability.

Working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare,
including social security benefits, mandatory provident fund, and
labour pension, are required to be in compliance with employment
or labour laws and regulations. Selected benefit programs, including
medical coverage, are also provided.

ARV AT 778 Hr B DA 5| B Be B A
BB T - T FIE RELF T B IARERE
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Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours
to provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles
of equality and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration,
promotion, and benefits are required to be handled based on
objective assessment, equal opportunity and non-discrimination
regardless of gender, race, age, or other measures of diversity.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance relating to Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage
Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and Anti-
discrimination Ordinance in Hong Kong and Labour Relations Law in
Macau.

Health and safety

The Group is committed to strict compliance with all relevant health
and safety legislation. Although the works carried out by the Group
and its sub-contractors do not involve heavy machinery or manual
handling of hazardous materials, the staff teams are exposed to
relatively higher health and safety risks. The project management
team is committed to conducting on-going risk assessments to
identify and manage these risks, with the objectives of achieving the
goal of zero accidents.

In most cases, the main contractor or the management of the
construction site would already have developed and deployed to
the staff teams sets of site safety plans and instructions and requires
compliance by all subcontractors. Management of the Group works
to ensure that the subcontractors strictly observe these safety plans
and directives. Safety instructions for different operations are well-
communicated to the employees. In accordance with the safety
requirements of the Labour Department and the main contractor, we
provide the site staff with qualified safety equipment, including safety
helmets, goggles and other necessary safety precautions to ensure
the occupational safety of the staff. Personal protective equipment
specific to the type of work being performed is made available and
distributed. The site foremen are responsible for ensuring proper
use and maintenance of the equipment. The Group extends the
considerations and assessments to the subcontractors, and the
project team maintains close communication to provide the staff and
subcontractors with the latest safety information.
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The Group places safety at the highest priority. Investigation is
carried out after every incident, and recommendations or corrective
actions are taken if necessary. Management will continue to maintain
constant communication with field operations. Going forward,
the Group will reinforce the effort to strive towards the ultimate
objective of zero accident and zero injury rate during operations. The
Group was not subject to any material administrative penalties or
fines for any breach of laws or regulations relating to the provision of
a safe working environment or the protection of employees against
occupational hazards during the Reporting Period.

AEEBRERES

EBRENRE

BETHE  UHELEHRIGEZIFRY
EREREBERRSRIEFRITHE
ERE RNEEHBMES L UE

Eﬁ@J
/ﬁﬁ

& $T$E§&T%EE'JE*ZXET

HAR -

°J5<‘¥E:‘:

%%iﬁ@ﬁi%?ﬁ%fimﬁﬂiﬁﬁ
FERMEBREMERNITEEZSI IR o

2021 2020 2019
Occupational health BERE
and safety statistics k2 EE —E-—F —ET-THF —T-NEF
Number of lost days due to work injury B T 15 &2 A8 K
H# 359 301 200
Number of work-related fatal accidents T {E4H B &) B ap F i
#H - =
Number of work injuries accidents TEEHHA 3 7 2
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 & T A&
(Hong Kong) BEINK (HE) 11 14 12
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 & T A&
(Macau) EINECGRPY) - 54 =
Development and training R RIEI
The Group is devoted to creating a learning culture among the — 7% @20 1 £ B B b & 3 28 1t - E%EI
teams, so as to enable the staff in developing their career and ZEEEFENEIEZ - At - NEE T4
enabling them to reach their goals. The Group therefore, from time Hzl Bx 2 E SN EREE 3 1§‘J ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁ’”
to time, organises the teams to attend external training, such as the  #A&R1Z * 1SO 260004t & \E?a%%ﬁ&u:i

BIM induction course, ISO 26000 Guidance on Social Responsibility
course, and the Corporate Social Capital in Practice workshop.
Training is also provided to management with the aim to maintain
and enhance the technical knowledge and professional skills
possessed. Training for labours and staff in construction sites mainly
includes safety precautions in the construction industry and case
studies of accidents that happened before.

Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour. The
Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to safeguard the
rights of our employees, and will not tolerate labour exploitation.
During the recruitment process, we verify the age of applicants
and the practice is extended to the workers hired by our sub-
contractors. The Group prevents hiring child labour by conducting
an identification check of every new employee. Without exception,
during the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding child
labour and forced labour.
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Supply chain management

The materials used by the Group are mainly pipes and other fittings.
To fulfil the Group’s responsibility to the society, guidelines regarding
environmental protections have been set and constantly reviewed by
Management. The guideline includes disposal of wastes and sewage,
uses of chemicals and minimising pollutions that may be caused. All
works and materials used by sub-contractors have to comply with the

policy.

Sub-contractors are assessed continuously based on performances,
time of completion and services provided during the retention period
of the project. Suppliers are assessed continuously based on delivery
time, quality of materials and after-sales services. To ensure the
delivery of materials, the geographical region of the supplier is also
concerned. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 219 (2020:
212) qualified materials suppliers and 85 (2020: 82) qualified sub-
contractors.

During the Reporting Period, no major complaints on the quality of
materials used and the performance of works have been received.

Product responsibility

The Group is responsible to the main contractor for the works the
Group had completed, and has not encountered any issues of a
product recall or quality issue. Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited
("Wing Fung HK") was accredited with ISO 9001: 2008 (quality
management) quality management system standard for its quality
management system since 2013. The Group implements a series of
quality control measures to ensure the quality of work:

o Trainings are provided to our project management teams and
our subcontracted workers to ensure their understanding of,
and compliance with, our quality standards.

o Onsite inspections and rectification are carried out at each
construction site. Immediate rectification measures would
be taken if any quality control issues are identified. Upon
rectification, we re-inspect the quality control issues to ensure
that such issues have been resolved; and

o We require sub-contractors to fully abide by our quality control
measures when performing work for our construction projects.

Data privacy

As stipulated in the Group’s Code of Conduct, the Group properly
manages and protects the data of its employees, customers,
subcontractors and suppliers to ensure their privacy and
confidentiality. All tender documents, service contracts, related
licenses, employees’ personal data are neatly secured and archived.
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The Group complies with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
and is strictly abided by the regulation in the collection, disclosure,
usage, retention, and storage of data to ensure data integrity and
safety. Customer information is only collected when necessary. We
constantly conduct regular review on our data management and
provide trainings to our employees.

Intellectual properties

Our operational process mainly consists of installation and fitting our
services of MVAC system, which does not involve any advertising
and labelling practices. The information relating to advertising and
labelling is immaterial to our Group.

The Group did not receive any significant complaints relating to
our services provided and works due to safety and health reasons
during the Reporting Period. Furthermore, the Group was not aware
of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
bring significant impact to the Group concerning health and safety
advertising and labelling relating to products and privacy matters
relating to customers.

Anti-corruption

Any forms of bribery, forgery and misappropriation of materials,
including intellectual property, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
are strictly prohibited. The staff manual provides guidance on
employees’ behaviours, for example the acceptance of gifts and
conflict of interests, to further enhance the awareness of employees.
The Group encourages staff to report suspected corruption cases.
The whistle-blowing policy protects the whistle-blower from possible
retaliation. Reported incidents will be thoroughly investigated and
any misconduct would result in disciplinary actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance relating to dishonest and corruption activities
according to the Penal Code of Macau and the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Community investment

The Group strongly believes in the concept of community co-building
to help create a coherent and harmonious community. The Group
intends to lead by example of demonstrating the importance of
community investment and encourage our staff to participate in
community initiatives through charity events, volunteering events and
donations.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Chi Keung (# % %), aged 65, is our executive
Director, the chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer
of our Company. He is also the co-founder of our Group in 1996.
He was appointed as director of the Company on 29 September
2016. Mr. Chung is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
business strategies and overseeing the business and operation of our
Group. Mr. Chung is also a director of all members of our Group.

Mr. Chung has over 46 years of experience in the supply, installation
and fitting-out of MVAC system. In March 1974, Mr. Chung
joined Young's Engineering Co., Ltd as an apprentice and received
training at the Major Air-conditioning Service Department. Upon the
completion of his apprenticeship, he continued to work in the same
department until July 1980. In 1987, Mr. Chung co-founded Wing
Fung Engineering Limited. In July 1996 and March 2007, Mr. Chung
established Wing Fung HK and Botop Macau, respectively and has
been managing the business and operation of the two companies
in Hong Kong and Macau. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Chung was
a member of the senior management of Dickson Group Holdings
Limited (currently known as Richly Field China Development Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 313), and was responsible for managing the operation of
certain construction projects in Hong Kong.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chung owns all the issued
share capital of Wing Fung Capital Limited, one of the substantial
Shareholders, which owns 83,062,500 consolidated shares of the
Company, representing approximately 51.19% of all issued shares
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares owned by Wing Fung Capital Limited under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO").
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Ms. LAI Suk Fan (2 # %), aged 59, was appointed as our
executive Director on 24 March 2017. She is primarily responsible for
overseeing the administration and human resources functions of our
Group.

Ms. Lai studied at Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute of the Vocational
Training Council on a part-time basis and was awarded a certificate
for accounting technicians in August 1998. In 1998, Ms. Lai obtained
a certificate in Accounting—Third Level issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry Examinations Board. Ms. Lai also joined
a distance-learning programme and received a Higher Certificate
in Business Management from the Hong Kong Management
Association in June 2009.

Ms. Lai has over 40 years of experience in administration, accounting
and human resources. Ms. Lai has worked as a junior clerk at
Teamlight Enterprises (HK) Ltd. from June 1980 to March 1982,
then she joined Shirtmaster Limited as a purchasing clerk from May
1982 to February 1987. During June 1987 to July 1999, Ms. Lai has
been working in Wing Fung Engineering Limited and Wing Fung HK
and her last position was an administration officer when she left the
companies in July 1999. From February 2001 to June 2011, Ms. Lai
worked at Artsuc M&E Limited as the administration manager. In July
2011, Ms. Lai rejoined our Group as the administration manager of
Wing Fung HK.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOY Hiu Fai Eric (2 & &), aged 44, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and
is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Choy has more than 18 years of experience in accounting. Mr.
Choy obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in November 2000.
Upon graduation, he joined Arthur Andersen & Co, an accounting
firm, in September 2000. Mr. Choy then continued his career with
PricewaterhouseCoopers as a senior associate in the assurance
and business advisory services department in July 2002. In 2004,
Mr. Choy joined Procon CPA Limited as a managing director and
he is now the head of the company’s operation in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen.

Mr. Choy has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 2005. He was also admitted as a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
the United States in June 2002. Mr. Choy has been a Certified Tax
Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since 30 September
2010.

Mr. Choy has been an independent non-executive Director of CCIAM
Future Energy Limited (formerly known as The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited), a company currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 145) since July 2016.
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Mr. LEI For (R #®}), aged 44, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lei has more than 19 years of experience in investment banking,
corporate finance and investment and management matters. Mr. Lei
obtained his Bachelor of Social Science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in November 2001. He started his career with L.P.
Lammas Asia Limited from September 2001 to October 2002. After
that, he worked in MasterLink Securities (Hong Kong) Corporation
Limited as an executive from December 2002 to February 2005. In
February 2005, Mr. Lei joined Haitong International Capital Limited
(previously known as Taifook Capital Limited and Tai Fook Capital
Limited) as an executive, and he left as a manager in May 2007. From
June 2007 to October 2010, he was appointed as the senior manager
and then the vice president of the corporate finance department in
ABCI Securities Company Limited. Mr. Lei then carried on his career
with Cinda (BVI) Limited as the corporate finance director of Cinda
International Capital Limited from October 2010 to April 2011. In
April 2011 to December 2016, he joined CIMB Securities Limited
as a director in investment banking. From 2017 to 2019, he joined
Apastron Capital Limited with his last position as managing director.
Mr. Lei is currently the director of Hongsong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAl Wai Ming (2 {2 83), aged 46, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lai graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1997 and was awarded a Bachelor of Science degree in
Building Technology and Management. Then he obtained a Master of
Science in Real Estate from the University of Hong Kong in December
1999. In February 2002, Mr. Lai further obtained a diploma in
building surveying from the College of Estate Management in the
United Kingdom, which is a long-distance programme. Mr. Lai was
also certified as a registered professional engineer by the Engineer
Registration Board in April 2006, and he was admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Chartered Institute
of Building in December 2004 and May 2005, respectively.

Mr. Lai has over 23 years of experience in building service and
engineering. Mr. Lai joined Gammon Construction Limited in July
1998 and he was the assistant project manager when he left the
company in November 2007. He then worked at Hongkong Land
Limited, a property investment, management and development
group listed in London, Bermuda and Singapore, from November
2007 to July 2011 as an assistant project manager. In July 2011, Mr.
Lai joined a property developer as a project manager in Hong Kong
and he was a senior project manager when he left the company in
August 2017. In February 2018, Mr. Lai has joined a construction
company in Hong Kong as a project director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREREBREHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following are the senior management team of the Group:

Mr. LAW Pak Hin Edward (2 48 Iff ), aged 35, joined our Group
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of our Group on 12
September 2016, and as our Company Secretary on 14 February
2017. Mr. Law is primarily responsible for overseeing the finance and
accounting functions of our Group.

In July 2010, Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from the
Australian National University in Australia. He was admitted as an
associate of the CPA Australia in August 2010 and was further
admitted as a full member in July 2013. Mr. Law has more than 11
years of experience in finance and accounting. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Law has joined BDO Limited as an associate in December
2010 and he was an assistant manager when he left BDO Limited in
December 2014. Then he carried on his career with Ernst & Young
in December 2014 and he was a senior accountant in the assurance
department when he left the firm in August 2016.

Mr. CHAN Kai Ho (FR Bk &), aged 37, was appointed as a project
manager at Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited in January 2018
and primarily responsible for overseeing and managing project
execution and operation.

Mr. Chan obtained a Master’'s degree in Construction Law and
Dispute Resolution at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2018
and a Bachelor’s degree in Building Services Engineering at The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Chan has more than
12 years of experience in engineering including the experience in
relation to MVAC services. Mr. Chan began his engineering career as
an assistant engineer with a Hong Kong based company specialised
in construction and engineering related services from July 2009 to
July 2010. He then worked at Paul Y. (E&M) Contractors Limited from
2010 to 2017 with his last position being a project building services
engineer.
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The Directors hereby presented their report and audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2016 under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (the “Companies Law"”) of the Cayman Islands.

The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure
of the Group in preparation for the Listing. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details of
the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The Shares
were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018
(the “Listing”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC systems for
buildings in Hong Kong and Macau. The projects of the Group can
generally be categorised into private sector projects and public sector
projects. A list of the subsidiaries of the Company and details of
their principal activities of are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes to the
Group's principal activities during the year.

For discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of business, its key relationship with employees, customers, suppliers
and subcontractors, an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators, can be
found in sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 7 to 16 of this annual report and the discussion of
its environmental policies and performance, can be found in section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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The Group has established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying and analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
Details of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set
out on page 11 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had continued
to engage an independent internal control consultant to review
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and directly
report to the Audit Committee. For details, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Internal Control and Risk Management” under
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s operations
were mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group shall
accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong and Macau and the respective places of incorporation of the
Company and its subsidiaries. During the year and up to the date of
this report, the Board was not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31
December 2021 by operating segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 81 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 164 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2021
in the plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements including the details regarding the placing
of 75,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 3 December 2021, the Board proposed that every four (4) issued
and unissued existing shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated
into one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$0.04 each in the
share capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation became effective on 21 January 2022. Immediately
after the Share Consolidation becoming effective on 21 January
2022, the authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 consolidated shares
of par value HK$0.04 each, of which 162,250,000 consolidated
shares would be in issue which are fully paid or credited as fully paid.
For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022 and
the Company’s circular dated 30 December 2021.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
HK$32,643,000.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2021

Report of Directors
BEEgWmE

MEHE

AREBRBEIABEEENEEUAREEREA
BENRE (RIFASRATBRE) SRAE
WE164H o

& 55 B 5%

AEENE BERRERBE-_T_FF
TZA=+—HLEFENEBFE  HXA
FHFE B RRMEE14

RN

ARBBARBE-FT - —FT-_A=1—
AItFEEE (BEREAARSREEOL.O1
78 7T 75,000,000 B2 Y FEKE) HORE B B
kR M HRAMTE22

RZTE-_—F+-_A=H BEFERHEX
DA AR FHE)REREECEITH
RAREEITRERETREEROEHA—O)
BARRBRAFFREEOC.04B TTHE G
D (RhEH]) BRHEHRZZEZ_F—
AZ+—BAER - BERNEHR=ZZT ==
F-—AZ+—HERE  ARERETRA
/5 1,000,000,0007% 7T * % 4 25,000,000,000
KRERMECMETHAHRG
162,250,000 f% & DF AR 17 #& LA B8 B s A BR 71/ 1
BERFANBEIT - BAROEHFS HRHE
AANRBHAZ-_—F+_A=AKR_-F
T ZF—ATNBENAHEUARARRBHA
—E -+ A=1+HMAEXK-

e

RZB-_—F+_A=+—0 " A2 FA#H
DR TRENFE(RERSEEQARETMN
HE) #)/532,643,0008 7T °

IR HE AR A 1 R

RBE-F-—F+-A=+—AILFEE-
AR KT S IR B - T IR
GLIER

57



58

KEKEZMNERAA

— = —

—_ = —

—F 5

Report of Directors

EXEWE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

m

EmiRE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short () EEREETHRAERKR®G - HEKRG
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures NEEENERRAR
As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H EEK
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, KRB REITHRABRAR G SHEMA
the underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any B EE (EXREBEMNESTIERE
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV ENREBEEY TEENMBEKEMN] E
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the XVER) Bigfn ~ AR DK EREZF
Laws of Hong Kong)(the “SFO")), which were required to be BEAREE S RBAEROIEXVERSE7
notified the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to RESH MG RN E) KB FTH RS
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests LA R (BIERERS R BAEED B
or short positions which any such director or chief executive HERSHEEEIHRAEBNEZRL
was taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) wE)  SIRIEE 5 K HEE &P 5 352
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, RSN ZIKFTIEN ZE R AR R &
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were KA RIBIEGEM EM R BIES5.46 %
required, pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors referred S.67TIEFTERKBEFNR FELEENS
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to RATIRBERPTHERS KORB AT -
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
Number of the
Capacity/ Shares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
R/
EERERN
BEENE B, RRHE BROBE &7 %A BRE AL
Mr. Chung Interest in controlled 332,250,000 Long position 51.19%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Htet2)
Bt SRR ER (Mat 1) S}
Notes: Bt -

(1) The 332,250,000 Shares are held by Wing Fung Capital Limited,
which is an associated corporation of the Company and wholly-
owned by Mr. Chung. Therefore, Mr. Chung is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Wing Fung Capital Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chung is our executive Director, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

2) Based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.

(1) 332,250,000 /% & 5 B3 Wing Fung
Capital Limited ¥ + 522 8] &A1 85
BATE AEXELEHESE Bt 5t
BERBMEKAME BEEHBERR
Wing Fung Capital Limited Ff £ & 8 T &
BRDFHEAERS - BEERNTES
EEFRATBABE R AR AFERRR -

2 WRE-ZE-_—F+_A=+—HARA
EREITRHMAEE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had registered
any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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1B 15 7% %&Hﬂiﬂwﬁmﬁ%%ﬁ FERE
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BIEGEM E T A 555,46 £5.67 1578
MEARRIRBIFTOER AR

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests I FERRERHEMATRERG  HERG
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and RERFTNERRRE
Debentures
So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2021, the BEEMHN R_TE=-_—4F+=H
following persons/entities (other than the Directors and chief =+—8" LAT/\i/§ (EERAR
executive of the Company) had or were deemed to have taken RNAETREITERABRIN RARD A
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares R - BERSHWRAEERB DR
which were recorded in the register of interests required to RATIMRBEZES RAEKDIZE33614%E
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, FEENEZELMA  KBEEHER
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of B IEMEXVERE 2 RE 39 FBHI R
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the GEM Listing K GEM ETRAIZE TR EmSOA R ©
Rules.
Number of the
Capacity/ Shares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
R
EERERN
EEMNR B RERHE BROEE & KB BEREDIL
Wing Fung Capital Limited Beneficial owner 332,250,000 Long position 51.19%
(Note)
(Kr&t)
Wing Fung Capital Limited EnEBA S
Note: Bt -

Based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, had notified the
Company of an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debenture of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any of its associated corporation a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of the Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, so far as the Company
is aware, the aggregate revenue attributable to our five largest
customers and the largest customer accounted for approximately
99.1% (2020: 99.8%) and 57.9% (2020: 36.4%), respectively, of
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Our Directors consider our Group’s business model is sustainable as
we have been actively tendering for projects and securing awards
of contracts placed by various main contractors. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 63.5%
(2020: 47.7%) of the Group’s total costs of materials for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the purchase from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 27.1% (2020: 11.9%).
Sub-contracting fees from the Group’s five largest subcontractors
accounted for approximately 67.7% (2020: 37.4%) of the Group’s
total subcontractor costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the sub-contracting fee from the largest sub-contractor included
therein amounted to approximately 32.0% (2020: 11.6%).
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None of the Directors nor any of his/her close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, suppliers and subcontractors during the year ended 31
December 2021.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Further information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the INEDs.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Updated biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 49
to 53 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with Company for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject
to further renewal, and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by the Company or Director or the Director has not
been re-elected as a director of the Company or has been removed
by shareholders of the Company at any of its general meeting or is
disqualified from acting as a director of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Each INED was
appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of three years,
subject to further renewal and unless terminated by the Company
or the INED in accordance with the terms as set out in the letter of
appointment. All Directors are also subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years pursuant to the requirements of the
Articles and the applicable Listing Rules. The service agreement of
each executive Director and the letter of appointment of each INED
have been renewed for another term of 3 years commencing from
27 February 2021 on the same terms and conditions.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM") has or is proposed to have any service contracts with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than the statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at every annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed pursuant
to Article 16.2 or Article 16.3 shall not be taken into account in
determining which Directors are to retire by rotation. A retiring
Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which he
retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. The Company at
any annual general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the
vacated office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Further, according to Article 16.3 of
the Articles, the Company may from time to time in general meeting
by ordinary resolution increase or reduce the number of Directors but
so that the number of Directors shall not be less than two. Subject
to the provisions of these Articles and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles, our independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Lei For and Mr. Lai Wai Ming, shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and elsewhere in this annual
report, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or an
entity connected with the Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no contracts
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
any controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for making recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Group. The remunerations
of the Directors are determined by reference to the Group’s operating
results, comparable market statistics, the responsibilities and duties
assumed by each Director as well as their individual performance.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of Directors
nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
conflicts of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking given
by, amongst other, Mr. Chung and Wing Fung Capital Limited,
details of which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully
complied and enforced since the Listing and up to the date of this
report. The Board also confirms that there are no other matters in
relation to the aforesaid undertaking which should be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders and the potential investors.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus and the Company’s announcement regarding the placing
of new shares under general mandate and change in use of proceeds
from the Listing dated 22 October 2021 (the “Announcement”) with
the Group’s actual business progress for the period from the date of
the Listing to 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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Actual business progress up

Business strategies as stated Implementation plan as stated  to 31 December 2021

in the Prospectus in the Prospectus BE-Z-_—-F+=-HA=+—-H2
BRERR ZEB KK HBRERT 2B 2 EREBER

Employment of additional staff Payroll for newly employed staff The Company has incurred staff costs of

and provision of relevant training

S T MRH AR BB THHT

Sponsor project team to
attend technical seminars and
occupational health and safety
courses
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approximately HK$16.3 million as at 31
December 2021 for all 18 new headcounts in
our project team and one administrative staff
recruited by the Group since the Listing.
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AEE FHEBENIEREKRNZ2E618
EEIR—RITRABES B THKAL
163EEET °

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
paid approximately HK$7,000 to sponsor its
engineering staff to attend technical seminars
and occupational health and safety courses
organised by third parties and reallocated the
remaining of approximately HK$0.1 million to
working capital on 22 October 2021.
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Business strategies as stated
in the Prospectus
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Implementation plan as stated

in the Prospectus
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Actual business progress up

to 31 December 2021
BE-F-_—-F+=-HA=+—-HZ
EREKER

Leasing of a new office and

employment of additional staff in

Macau

MEMHMFEERIERRMHAET

Purchase building information
modeling BIM software
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Provide training to staff for the
BIM software

i BIM B A B TR 531

Rental for new Macau office

FARFEMMER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group acquired
BIM software in the amount of approximately
HK$36,000 and reallocated the remaining of
approximately of HK$0.8 million to working
capital on 22 October 2021.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
paid approximately HK$18,000 to sponsor its
engineering staff to attend training for BIM
software and reallocated the remaining of
approximately of HK$0.2 million to working
capital on 22 October 2021.
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The Group has leased a new office located in
Cotai, Macau in May 2018 and has utilised
approximately HK$0.6 million for the relevant
rental expenses as at 31 December 2021 and
reallocated the remaining of approximately
of HK$0.2 million to working capital on 22
October 2021.
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Business strategies as stated
in the Prospectus
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Implementation plan as stated
in the Prospectus
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Actual business progress up

to 31 December 2021
BE-ZE-_-f+=A=+—BZ2
ERXKER

Payroll for newly employed
administrative staff in Macau
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Purchase leasehold improvement,
purchase of furniture and fixtures
for the new Macau office

RETRFIMERBEHEERE
BEGMEEERE

The Group has hired two administrative
staff in Macau thereby incurring additional
staff cost of approximately HK$0.7 million
as at 31 December 2021 and reallocated the
remaining of approximately of HK$0.5 million
to working capital on 22 October 2021.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
purchased furniture and fixtures in the
amount of approximately HK$0.2 million for
the new Macau office and reallocated the
remaining of approximately of HK$0.2 million
to working capital on 22 October 2021.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were listed on GEM on 27 February 2018 pursuant to the
initial public offering of the Company. The net proceeds from the
Listing (after deducting the underwriting fees and expenses related
to the Listing) amounted to approximately HK$27.2 million. To cope
with the increasingly challenging external business environment and
ongoing uncertainties over the severity and duration of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Board resolved to change and re-allocate the uses of
the unutilised net proceeds from the Listing on 22 October 2021. For
more details including the reasons and benefits for the said change,
please refer to the Announcement. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group had fully utilised the net proceeds from the Listing in
accordance to the plans disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the Announcement.

Up to 31 December 2021, the net proceeds had been utilised as
follows:
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Revised Actual use of net

Allocation allocation  proceeds from
of total net Actual use of net  Unutilised net of total net 23 October  Unutilised net
proceedsas  proceedsupto  proceedsasat  proceeds as at 2021to  proceeds as at
stated in the 22 October 22 October 22 October 31 December 31 December
Prospectus 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Every Director shall be entitled under the Company’s Articles to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him or her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted. Such provision was in force since the adoption of the
Articles upon the date of the Listing and remains in force as at the
date of this report.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. None of the related party
transactions constituted discloseable non-exempted connected
transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
as defined under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25% of the
Company’s issued capital was held by public as at the date of this
report.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) had been independent
auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”) since the Listing. On 28
November 2019, Deloitte resigned as the Auditor. On 13 December
2019, the Board appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") to fill
the casual vacancy resulting from the resignation of Deloitte. Further
details can be found on the Company’s announcements published on
28 November 2019 and 13 December 2019.

On 29 October 2021, PwC resigned as the Auditor. On the same
date, the Board appointed Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) to fill
the casual vacancy resulting from the resignation of PwC and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company. Further details can be found on the Company’s
announcement published on 29 October 2021.

Save for the above, there were no other changes in the Company’s
auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Mazars. Mazars shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Mazars as
the Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (version up to
31 December 2021) (the “CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules expect for the code A.2.1 (which has been
re-numbered to C.2.1 since 1 January 2022). For further details
regarding the compliance of the CG Code can be found in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 17 to 33
of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our Group did not make
any charitable or other donations (2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 December 2021, the Board proposed that every four (4) issued
and unissued existing shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$0.04 each in the share
capital of the Company.

The Share Consolidation was approved by the Shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 19 January
2022 and became effective on 21 January 2022. Immediately
after the Share Consolidation becoming effective on 21 January
2022, the authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 consolidated shares
of HK$0.04 each, of which 162,250,000 consolidated shares would
be in issue which are fully paid or credited as fully paid.

For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022 and
the Company’s circular dated 30 December 2021.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2021

Report of Directors

EFEHS

BrBERE

RIEAANKFASEE ARG HEHIEME
BARRARLPIARERRREZHENK
MZBEEEERTE -

BEEEK

REBE-_Z-_—EF+-_A=+—BILtEE "
BERT U FEEMEARNEREERSS 22k
ERERFHEBZEERITHEL -

=R

2

g

REBEE_ZE-_—F+_A=+—"HILFE"
AEBWYREHEMESHHEMBE (2T
THE ) o

=

BEMRER

R-B-_—F+-_A=0 EBF€EZEX
NEIEA R 4)REEA0.01EITHE %
TERARBETREBROEHE—()BREARRK
AN AL EE0.0478 TR A GHAR (D °

BHOEHR_BE-_—_F—A+HLhBELRRD
AIRERRERFN A L TR
ZF AT —HER - ZBERHDEHFR
—E-_F—A-+—BAEBE  ARTHN
SEE R AR E & & 1,000,000,0008 7T 0 B A
25,000,000,000 % &A% 0.04 78 TTHI A AL (D
H /162,250,000 f& & HF B 17 #5 12 54 2 A% 51 3¢
TTRARYAHE -

BEROEHTE  F2HEARRABHAEZ
T —F+-—RAR=ZAR=ZZT=_=_F—A+h
HRRABARAARBHA-—S - —F+=
B=+HWREXK -

71



72

KEKEZMNERAA
“EZ-FER

Report of Directors
BEEEWmE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of the shares of the Company will
be registered. Shareholders of the Company are reminded to ensure
all properly executed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 pm on Thursday, 26 May 2022.

On behalf of the Board
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
CHUNG Chi Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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To the members of
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Fung
Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 81 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group at 31 December
2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZBERE

Mazars CPA LIMITED

B B (A W ) ot e s 7 L )
42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

7 7 VA 7 1 1 8 9% T BR B 404

Tel & : (852) 2909 5555

Fax 1L : (852) 2810 0032

Email 7 : info@mazars.hk

Website A4 : www.mazars.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HEERER

RAREXEER

REBESZEXAE BREECFE/ES
BERAHRGAVBHRRPIRERSHE
BEERNERE AV BHRRIL UK E R
EREBLRENEEE MIEMUF
HEBRRER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNNEERRERSEE

Revenue recognition on construction contracts

BRELR Wz B

Refer to notes 2.18, 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
REREUBHmEME2.18 - 4 &5

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
revenue as recognised from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$174.8 million.
HE-_T-_—&+-_A=+—BHIFE"
RENEROWE RK1748B BB ©

EEEBEE

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised over time
by measuring the progress towards completion of the
Group’s performance obligations as set out in respective
contracts. The Group has used the output method to
estimate the progress of each performance obligation
satisfied over time by reference to the value of construction
works completed to date (as certified by external surveyors
or evaluated by internal project managers) as a proportion
of the total contract value of the relevant construction
contracts. In addition, contract value may also be subject
to changes due to variations of works, claims or disputes
with customers.

BESAONKRNERTE ESEREBSHREE
WNEANTHRESERBER - ESEEAH LA
ARERETKBOREENEE  ETP2RESTRNE
HLTREME (EINERSANRERAEEB LB H)
EHBRZESVNESNEELD - I SHEETR
AREEATIRERT RRFERFHUHMED -

We identified the revenue recognition on construction
contracts as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the amounts involved and the significant degree of
management’s judgement on the estimation of the total
outcome of construction contracts as well as the progress
towards completion of construction work.

BRI R BN EZ A RRES DBRA B GETIA
MRETRTEREENHABREERS  KABEESD
KR ERETE RAREZSEE -

Our key procedures, among others, included:
EENTERF(HPERE) 8

(a)

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s control
processes and key controls over revenue recognition
on construction contracts;

TR BERENEEEFMNEERANKRRERIE
SRESIE

enquiring the Group's internal project managers and
check to the internal project manager’s evaluation
reports on the status of projects under construction
as selected on a sample basis to evaluate the
reasonableness of the progress towards completion
of the selected projects and to identify if there are any
variations of works, claims or disputes with customers
which may vary the revenue recognition on the
contracts;

M EEEAMEELESHLNAEIERKLEH
AR EE R mEEERIER &R - ARTEE
FTHEANTKEERSEERHEHRET B EMIRE

B3] MEREEFNAS  LARA OMHERT
B

agreeing the total contract value to the respective
signed contracts, variation orders or correspondence
with customers, on a sample basis;
MERHBASNBEERABARSSH  TEEF<
HEE PR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBRNNEERRELSEE

(d)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

B SENHBRE X EERE T

verifying whether the value of work has been
reasonably recognised as contract revenue by
checking to the completion status specified in external
surveyor's reports and/or internal project managers’
evaluation reports, on a sample basis, to the value of
construction works as recognised by the Group; and
REIREEREGCABRERRSAOWE  TER
RS NP R BRI RS & A ERIE B LB TG
HEPM TR E BEEEERNEETRERE:
5

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external surveyors who issued surveyor’s reports
for our selected samples of construction contracts.

AT B F RS QBN EE ORI 2 AT R & 59 SRR
SRIRETRED BEOREHREE

Refer to notes 2.10, 3.1, 4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated Our key procedures, among others, included:

BENEIRRF (TR B -

financial statements.

BIRAMB®RERMTE2.10-3.1 -4 16%17 -

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to approximately HK$38.6
million and HK$118.4 million respectively and the
provisions for impairment loss allowance on these trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to approximately
HK$2.0 million and HK$1.0 million respectively.
RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H0'  EXEENESHEKX
BRENEEBBAD R RHZBOAEBTRIGIAE
BLLZEESHRRFBARANEENREBREES
PRK20BE8ETRI0BEET -

(a)

(b)

understanding the internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and the ECL Assessment
(including the assessment on the methodology of
impairment and estimation of expected credit loss
allowance);

THEREEERR KEMEHREEBBRFGOHNA
HeEEE (BETHREREREEEERBE MR
TE)

evaluating the reasonableness of the historical credit
loss rates as adopted by management in the ECL.
Assessment by checking, on a sample basis, the
past settlement history and subsequent settlement
information;

AL EEENEREERRTHEANBEEER
BREEREE  HERMBEREBEEMNTEHLE
‘ENER
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Key audit matters

HEEXZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBERNNEERRERSEE

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
assess lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets (the “ECL assessment”).
For the ECL assessment, management grouped trade
receivables and contract assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and estimated the expected credit losses
allowance to be recognised by considering the aging
profile of overdue balances, the repayment and default
histories of different customers, the historical credit loss
rates, the post-year end subsequent settlements from
respective customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking information
relevant to customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances.
EEBERAEBVBRELERBEIORBERASENEE S
RRHIERAHNEE BB EEBEN G ((RREEE
BEL) - AFEHEEBRAN MmN ERESAEASE
UEERREBESRERBARGNEESHE  WiE
BERBIESRZRERN TREP 2 &R RIBRTD
B BEEEEBRX IFPZFREMRZEN - HEH
BEFZHBEBBARKET P EERERERENIEH
ZAIEMER %#%%ﬁwZ%%mEﬁ%%ﬁ°

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amounts involved and the use of
judgement and estimates by the management in assessing
the ECL Assessment.

MRS R EENEZEAREBBRTHIEHEES
BRHE R A 2 Al R (A5 RIS E S RYGRIER S
HNEEZRENEHEERAMAEERENRE -

(@)

checking the aging profile of the trade receivables and
contract assets at 31 December 2021 and the post
year-end subsequent settlements from customers, on
a sample basis, to underlying accounting records and
supporting documents;

MERER_ZE_—F+-_A=+—RHESEKX

ERANBENRKBARTEFREERRNOAR
B B AR RS & 5 RO 8% S SR U

understanding the Group’s on-going business
relationship with the relevant customers through
discussion with management and corroborated the
information as provided by management to the
status of underlying projects, public information and
correspondence with the relevant customers; and
FREERENRUTE EXEEEARTPNR
%%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁkhﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm
AR~ REER RERBTFHEM &

understanding and evaluating the management’s
process in identifying the relevant forward-looking
information for the ECL Assessment.
THRERTHERESHNNEREE B RN A
AIE LB ERT -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2021 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

BB BREE
EHNEE
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2021
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung

Practising Certificate number: P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZEHRER

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T—_—F+-_A=+—HItEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FHET T

Revenue g 5 174,824 221,225
Cost of sales & A 7 (182,044) (179,561)
Gross (loss) profit E(B) R (7,220) 41,664
Other income, net Hap e A F58 6 1,087 5,332
Reversal (Provision) of impairment B HREWGIERE HEERR

losses on trade receivables and BBERER (HE)

contract assets 7 374 (590)
Administrative expenses TR 2 7 (16,826) (15,311)
Expenses in relation to the transfer of — ##4R 5 5%

listing 7 (448) (4,403)
Operating (loss) profit K (ER)BR (23,033) 26,692
Finance costs B 7% B 2R 8 (1,873) (980)
(Loss) Profit before income tax BRETB B AT (B518) B F (24,906) 25,712
Income tax credit (expense) FrigfiEe (M) 11 3,083 (3,141)
(Loss) Profit for the year FRr(EHE) &R (21,823) 22,571
Other comprehensive (expenses) FREMEE(FZ) WA -0

income for the year, net of tax R IR
Item that may be reclassified to profit ~ FJFEEFT DI E1Em B A -

or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation ~ —# &8N EFHE 5 =58

of a foreign operation (44) 95

Total comprehensive (expenses) FRE2ME(BX) WHHAE

income for the year (21,867) 22,666

(Restated)
(L& &%)

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per FiA QR EERFTE ARG

share for (loss) profit attributable (Ei18) BFNERERE #

to the ordinary equity holders B (B8 2R (8REAW)

of the Company (HK cents per

share) 13 (14.98) 15.73

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

A L4R A 2 EU R B RIREKT KT — OB -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R &

At 31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FHExT FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Plant and equipment BB K & 14 505 895
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 863 1,265
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSREE 23 3,071 367
.. _5439 2527
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 117,361 100,566
Trade and other receivables, deposits & 5 [ H th g U 718
and prepayments & MIERRIE 17 39,546 74,595
Current income tax assets BNERFTIS T & & 853 =
Pledged and restricted bank deposits 2 & F R HI R 1T FE R 18 15,258 20,212
Cash and cash equivalents BeMhBSEEY 18 10,653 18,718
____________________________________________________________ 183,671 _____ 214,091_
Total assets EEHEE 188,110 216,618
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 132 536
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R B MBI &R

At 31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET T T
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and retention payables B o REMNZENRE S 19 41,227 40,953
Other payables and accrued expenses £ fth & (< 08 & fE =+ & 20 6,112 5,758
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 749 737
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFS R aE - 5,620
Bank borrowings RITERK 21 26,815 38,224
_____________________________________________________________ 74903 91,292
Total liabilities EE8E 75,035 91,828
Net assets BEEFE 113,075 124,790
EQUITY R
Share capital % < 22 6,490 5,740
Reserves i 106,585 119,050
Total equity wrER 113,075 124,790

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 163 were $£81ZE163EMEAMBRECEESTERN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 =T ZF=AZ+—BH#AERKERZEL

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BRI TATRERES
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan EER k7 23
Director Director EE EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA _E4RE BAFSHR N 3 2 [RI BE B Bt 5 — FRIAE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE—T—_—F+-A=1+—HItFE

Exchange
Share Share translation Capital Other  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
kA RGEE EXRE EARE  HURE  RERN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THIL THT THT THL
(Note 22(@) ~ (Note 22(b))
(Hiz22a) (Wit 220)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R=2-2%-5-H
ifed 3 5,740 41,147 (618) 11,676 (12,941) 57,120 102,124
Profit for the year FREF - - - - = 22,571 22,571
Other comprehensive income Bt 2 ERA
~ ltem that may be reclassified to —HHEN A E R
orofit or loss HEA
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEN
translation of a foreign operation ERZER - - 95 - - = 95
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2ARBLAE
the year - - 95 - - 22,571 22,666
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE5+-R
=t+-BHEH 5,740 41,147 (523) 11676 (12941 79691 124,790
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B=-%
-A-HWES 5,740 41,147 (523) 11,676 (12,941) 79,691 124,790
Loss for the year ENER - - - - = (21,823)  (21,823)
Qther comprehensive expenses E2Em%
— ltem that may be reclassified to ~HHEEN A EEEm
profit or loss HEE
Exchange differences arising on REBINEREER
translation of a foreign operation ERZE - - (44) - - - (44)
Total comprehensive expenses for 2 B 45
the year - - (44) - - (21,823) (21,867)
Transaction with owners BREANR S
Contributions and distributions #FRAT
Issue of shares upon placing of shares  FARZE A A %4117
(Note 22) (Hrit22) 750 10,050 - - - - 10,800
Transaction costs incurred in REERNELNRS
connection with placing of shares WA = (648) = S = = (648)
750 9,402 - - - - 10,152
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZE=-%£+2R
=t+-BH&ER 6,490 50,549 (567) 11676  (12941) 57,868 113,075
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be A F4R& MRS BBk e s8 RIBA P BT s — GTRIE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEBRERNER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZT=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 FET FHAIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEFED
Cash used in operations KETAR S 25@) (3,103) (30,703)
Income taxes paid BT R (6,094) (1,928)
Net cash used in operating RETHIARSER
activities (9,197) (32,631)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Placement of pledged and restricted 77 P E #3852 (R 8817
bank deposits T (157) (17,642)
Release of pledged and restricted fERR BRI R 2R HIERTT
bank deposits T 5,100 10,837
Payments for plant and equipment W28 R B T 3R (18) (108)
Interest received 2 WHE 85 37
Net cash from (used in) investing RETBFREB(FFRAERE
activities HEE 5,010 (6,876)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Net proceeds from issue of shares REEERMDBEITRMN
upon placing of shares FriS I8 )5 58 22 10,152 =
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIERPTEFIE 99,617 54,723
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIFITER (108,091) (32,411)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEARE 25(c) (857) (724)
Interest paid B B (1,779) (933)
Net cash (used in) from financing B & EE (FTA) IBRESFEE
activities (958) 20,655
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREEEBURD FHR
equivalents (5,145) (18,852)
Cash and cash equivalents at the WERVIRS KRS
beginning of the reporting period ZEY 9,257 28,071
Effects of exchange rate changes on  [EXEEHHIR S KIF S
cash and cash equivalents SZEYNTE 15 38
Cash and cash equivalents at the HMEHMARESRES
end of the reporting period (net ZEY (MBREX)
of overdrafts) 18 4,127 9,257
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A _H4rA IR & R EREERIBEMH E—HHE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-—T—-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 September 2016 as
an exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business
is Unit D, 21st Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of
mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system
for buildings. The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Wing Fung Capital Limited, a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company listed its shares on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 27 February 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B B IS R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) New/revised HKFRSs applied by the Group

The Group has applied the following new/revised
HKFRSs for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions

Amendments to HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark
39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS ~ Reform — Phase 2
7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16

The adoption of the amendments did not have any
significant impact on the significant accounting
policies of the Group and the presentation of these
consolidated financial statements.

2. FESTHBEREME (&)

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted.

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30
June 2021

Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?

2018-2020 Cycle?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction?

Insurance Contracts®

Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IRE M BmERWE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHFEHE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 April 2021

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

& The effective date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new/revised HKFRSs
when they become effective. The Directors do not
anticipate that the adoption of these new/revised
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material
impact on the Group’s consolidation financial
statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries and principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HEHEEE(E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within other
income, net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B B IS R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-—T—-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the controlling shareholder and
executive director of the Group who make strategic
decisions. Details refer to Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives or, as follows:

Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 to 5 years
5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.

BE—T—_—F+-_A=1t—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets

()

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised costs are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
If collection of the amounts is expected in one
year or less they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise
of trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged and restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(iij) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest method.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment

The Group assess on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applied the simplified approach permitted under
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other receivables and deposits, it is measured at
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected loss, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, it is also subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, yet the
impairment loss is immaterial because the Group
only transacts with reputable international financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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AR B B IS R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)
(v) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group or group entities currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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AR MRS R M A
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10

2.12

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement within
30 days to 45 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
financial institutions with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits
Pledged bank deposits represent the amounts of cash
pledged as collateral to the banks for project bidding and

issuing performance bonds.

Pledged bank deposits are separately presented from
cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
share or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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2.

BE—T—_—F+-_A=1t—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current income tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHFEHE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Provisions 217 8%

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

J the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers in
profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a
variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to a
customer. The variable consideration is estimated by
using either the expected-value or the most-likely-
amount method whichever is better to predict the
entitled amount. The estimated variable consideration is
then included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised of the contract
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
(b) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised in
respect for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination.

(d) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholder. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.20 Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based
on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
of property for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabilities
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

2.

BE—T—_—F+-_A=1t—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s or operating companies’
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
approach focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate bank balances and
restricted bank deposits as disclosed in Note
18 to the consolidated financial statements
and bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to the
Group's fixed-rate pledged bank deposits
as disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances and Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted
by the lending bank arising from the Group's
HK$ denominated borrowings. The Group
aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates.
The Group currently does not have a policy
on hedging interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at each reporting period
end was outstanding for the whole year. A
100 basis point increase or decrease is used
which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2020: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2021 would increase/decrease by
HK$268,000 (2020: profit for the year would
decrease/increase by HK$382,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on the
Group’s bank balances and restricted bank
deposits as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure is minimal.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i) Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk mainly
arises from the fluctuation of HK$ against
the functional currency of a subsidiary of the
Company that has adopted Macau Pataca
("MOP") as functional currency and has
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets denominated in HK$. The management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure
to mitigate the foreign currency risk. As
MOP is pegged to HK$, the Group’s foreign
currency risk exposure is not considered to be
significant.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
deposits, pledged and restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
of these balances except cash on hand in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged and
restricted bank deposits

The majority of the Group's bank balances
are placed in financial institutions which are
independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these financial institutions as they
have no default history in the past.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-—T—-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MERRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BHEREZE(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GEREAE (&)

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are also subject to
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. It
is measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group also take
into account forward-looking information in the
impairment of the other receivables and deposits.
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the identified
impairment loss for other receivables and deposits
is assessed to be minimal.

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets without financing
components.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been assessed based on credit
risk characteristics of the customers with reference
to a wide range of factors such as default rates
of customers, aging profile of overdue balances,
the repayment and default histories of different
customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking
information that affecting the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances.
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(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
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BE_T-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

3. Mi¥EkEE ()

3.1 BBEKEZE (&)

(b) EEEE (&)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The Group has separated a customer with doubtful
credit rating from the other customers with low risk
credit rating in the determination of the expected
credit losses and fully provided for the trade
receivables of HK$1,773,000 (2020: HK$1,774,000)
for the year. For the other customers, the loss
allowance at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were

ESRMHBERENEE (B)

EETHEHAEERER K&
SEEB—RZEETALET
RNEFPHREMEETRA
BERBRHOEFSH  WHRE
R HLE 5 FE 718 1,773,000
BT (ZEZFF 1,774,000
%n)%ﬂj%%@ﬁ% BE

determined as follows for trade receivables: fth % = ﬁﬁ = RZT=Z—F
)32_ T _TF+_HA=+—
B S REUGRIA R B 18
1% BEMT
Gross
Expected  carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount  impaired
REEEE RELE HBRER FaFE FEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
Trade receivables at RZB=-F+=A
31 December 2021 =t-HZES
B TR
Not past due PNl 0.3% 30,169 (90) 30,079 No %
Within 30 days overdue BE30EA 0.6% 2,120 (13) 2,107 No %
30 days to one year overdue BH0KRE—F 2.9% 830 (24) 806 No &
QOver one year overdue BB —F 2.9% 3,721 (108) 3,613 No &
Balances excluding a customer  FEERF{EH2HAE
fully provided for AN 4 36,840 (235) 36,605
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE &)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HIERBEZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GEREAE (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) B 2N TER A ZIEE ()
Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount impaired
EHEEEX KELE FBERGE FEFE FEAEB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THET THL
Trade receivables at R-ZB-ZF+-A
31 December 2020 =t-BZE%
EWIE
Not past due Nl 0.3% 45,720 (137) 45,583 No £
Within 30 days overdue BH0XA 0.6% 8,126 (49) 8,077 No £
30 days to one year overdue BEKRE—F 26% 18,103 (475) 17,628 No f&
Over one year overdue AHER—F 0.0% = = = No &
Balances excluding a customer R EH 2 HEE
fully provided for PRGN 8 71,949 (661) 71,288

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets. The expected
credit losses below also incorporate forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBEKRERE (R
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiIEREBEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GEREE (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) B 2N TER A VIEE (B)
The Group has separated a customer with doubtful rEBETRHAEEEER
credit rating from the other customers with low risk B—BARKEETRNE
credit rating in the determination of the expected FPHHEMERKRREEFR
credit losses and fully provided for the contract MNEFEHFE  ITHFEREH
assets of HK$689,000 (2020: HK$689,000) for the & E 689,000 (ZF =
year. For the other customers, the loss allowance at T : 689,000 L) tEH 2
31 December 2021 and 2020 were determined as HRE -BEMEFLPME
follows for contract assets. RZEZ—FR-ZZF=FF
+=ZA=+—H &6HEE
EEREETOT -
Weighted
Gross average
carrying expected Loss  Net carrying
amount loss rates allowance amount
MEF
AEEE AHEEE EERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT

Contract assets at 31 December R=Z=—-F+=H

2021 =t-BWENEE
Balances excluding a customer fully  FE& P {EH 2 BB fE A5
provided for & ER 117,714 0.3% 353 117,361
Weighted
Gross average
carrying expected Loss  Net carrying
amount loss rates allowance amount
ik B2
BEEE AHBEX BRERE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TEL

Contract assets at 31 December R-Z-FF+=H
2020 ZT-BNENEE
Balances excluding a customer fully L& F{EE 2 BB S
provided for iokes 100,869 0.3% 303 100,566
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the consolidated statement
of financial position date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

3.

HHRRERE (&)

3.1

¥ EREE (R
(0 wEBEZEMRE

ARBEFEERDESR
REBZRREME LEM
AEBZES THRES
BeEBERRBETERER
KEVEEZRBDETER
BEER - AEEBBRE
ERTBARBERRASRER
P BEENRBENDH
B BBERTRZFR
LEEMERERRDES
B o

TEREAEEHITE A EIR
BHESEVBRIREER
EENE BT GRS
AR B AR R 1T AT o
TREBEMNSEEA LR
RESRE - ARUBEFE
IAEXR R121E A REH
MESRSERERmAR

On demand or

less than Between
1year 1 and 2 years Total
BRERR
DPR1E 1Z26F et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHExT FHET
At 31 December 2021 R=-T=-—%+=§
=+-—H
Trade and retention Z S RENRIAR
payables EARES 30,895 10,332 41,227
Other payables B Ath E < FR I8 1,754 - 1,754
Bank borrowings RITHENK 20,718 - 20,718
Lease liabilities HERE 766 144 910
Bank overdrafts RITEX 6,526 = 6,526
60,659 10,476 71,135
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk (Continued)
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3. Mi¥EkEE ()

3.1 BEEEEZ (FE)
(C) y;piﬁﬁﬁ/‘lﬂﬁ ({E{)

On demand or

less than Between
1 year 1 and 2 years Total
TE ke
LR F 1226 #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FET
At 31 December 2020 %:f:§¢+25
=+—H
Trade and retention BHREMNFER
payables ERES 34,122 6,831 40,953
Other payables H e IR 2,941 - 2,941
Bank borrowings RITER 29,004 = 29,004
Lease liabilities HEAR 790 550 1,340
Bank overdrafts RITEX 9,461 = 9,461
76,318 7,381 83,699

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
At 31 December 2021, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of bank borrowings and
overdrafts amounted to approximately
HK$27,244,000 (2020: HK$38,465,000). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings and overdrafts will be repaid
in one to two years (2020: one year) after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the bank
borrowing agreements.

KRBk D5
ZH%IJ RZZE—_—%F
=+—B RIEE
THARMIBAS B
27,244,000 T (_2_ =
£F : 38,465,000 7T) © & E
BASENMERR  EF
REBRITTIRAUTEESITER
E’JI BEKEEER -EF

CARBIRTT B R B AT
%ﬁﬁm%?ﬁ’\a,ﬁﬂ BART
EBEERETHERBREHRE
—EWF(ZBEZF: —F)
BE -

'
N?ﬂllﬁm%"ﬁ
M 2% 9% o ZF of ot

At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
On demand or within one year BRERFR—FNR 23,287 38,465
1 to 2 years 1826 3,957 -
27,244 38,465
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

Total capital of the Group is calculated as total equity
plus total borrowings (including total interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities). The Group’s gearing
ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total borrowings
by total equity at the year-end date. The gearing ratio of
the Group was as follows:

3.

M EkRERE (&)

3.2

EXEBER

AEBEEEEANERASE
BETERKBERSEQKEREEL
B R EBERCESREEF
BERERARROE - NEEH
ERREE B A FEARMER T E -

AR B0 AR E AN TR AR R 2R D AR
fER(REF EERRERAER
B itE - AEENBEAAFELE
TRFEHEE B NBERGR AR
BEFE AEENEEEEL
KT

At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Total borrowings BER 27,696 39,497
Total equity kg 113,075 124,790
Gearing ratio BEARBREE 24.5% 31.7%

The gearing ratio decreased from approximately 31.7%
at 31 December 2020 to approximately 24.5% at 31
December 2021, primarily due to the decrease in the
total interest-bearing borrowings which was due to the
repayment of revolving loans and bank overdrafts during
the year and the decrease in total equity resulting from
the decrease in retained profits attributable to recording
a net loss for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BEABHERH-_ZTE-_TF+=
A=Z+—B8H#H31.7 % mdE
—E - F+ZA=+—HHY
245 % - TEHRFTEEEBE
WL REAARFNEERITHE
BERIFITES  RE=EERD
RERABHBHZEZE_ZT=_—F+=A4
=+ HALFERAKSFEERES
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

3.3

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of the risk associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or repayment of existing debts.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values of trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, trade and retention payables, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities
are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

3. Mi¥EkEE ()

3.2

3.3
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AEEBBEBINERE  BEITH
B ARBTHEFXEERE
B FEHEEEEARRE -

AT @I

B 5 REUWGRIA - B WA &
T B 5 RN IR R BN RE
T BETERREMEN R
ROTERLEBERENREER
EAFENGEBOBE -EFR
BERE MBAGNATFET
BAEERBUN T TAASH
ERMHENEHAROERESR
BRERMAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR E

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-—T—-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)

Construction contracts

Management measures the progress towards completion
of the Group’s performance obligations based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of measuring the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value
of construction works completed to date as a portion
of the total contract value of the relevant construction
contracts. The management’s estimate of revenue and
the progress of construction works requires significant
judgement and has a significant impact on the amount
and timing of revenue recognised.

Management periodically measures the value of the
construction works completed for each construction
project based on results as certified by external surveyors
or evaluated by internal project managers and estimates
the value of works completed but yet to be certified
at the end of each reporting period. Management
estimated the value of uncertified works based on surveys
carried out by internal project managers and certain
projects maybe revisited with reference to certification
subsequently performed by external surveyors.
Management’s estimation of the value of the works may
also be subject to changes due to variations of works,
claims or disputes with customers. The Group regularly
reviews and revises the estimation of construction
contract progresses whenever there is any change in
circumstances.

EESTHET R A

REEERKAEL B RBRE - AEH
SRR ER  ROGEEBERG
RIER - IR TEAMBFEANEER
BENKREEREARARIEARNG

SHRERRILNT
(@) BEAL

EEENERBERFEARAEBTK
BREETNEE BBEB2RKRE
SETKERIREBEGERE
EENBESNEENSPERRE
AEERERNAETEREERK
moBEEMFT R REETE
EEF2EAHE A HEER
BB MRREZEATE -

REBREHR - EEEREIE
RIE RN AZ B s M ERIE B E 2R
MERTHILSHEZERBEE
EXKEETIRENEE Lkt
ExEKIEREZENTRREER"
EEEREATEE EEETH
RERBFRAERETRRENEE"
KETIRE A 2RIN R 260 H
BRETHREENES -BEHEE
HITREEMNAIETRER
REHEZT P I A4 M Sl L&
BARE ARETHENRE
EABERESEFERTETREES
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
the expected credit loss for trade receivables and
contract assets. Significant judgement is exercised on
the assessment of the lifetime expected credit losses
for the trade receivables and contract assets (i.e. ECL
assessment). For the ECL assessment, the Group has
grouped trade receivables and contract assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and estimated the expected
credit losses allowance by considering a wide range of
factors such as aging profile of overdue balances, the
repayment and default histories of different customers,
the historical credit loss rates, the post-year end
subsequent settlements from respective customers, on-
going business relationship with the relevant customers
and forward-looking information that affecting the
customers’ ability to repay the outstanding balances.
At every reporting date, the expected credit losses
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. Details of the assumptions
and inputs used are discussed in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue are derived from the provision of supply,
installation, and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings to external customers in Hong Kong and Macau
during the year. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the chief operating decision maker
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group
as a whole prepared based on the accounting policies as set
out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.

4. EERGFAETRHE (&)

(b) BEZERWREAREGNEENRE

AEBEBREEVEHREEAE
B EESIBEEE S REREARE
MEEMNTAEHBREEBRE -FHE
SREFRERENEENZHTR
HEEEBRITEE A E (B8
HEEERNG) - HEREEES
BEEmME  AKEKEAEMU
EERRFBZEZREKEAER
BHEENHE UEBEREH
R ZREBRL TRAEPZE
RAEENESE  BEFEBEEX -
BEEPZEREREN  HIEHE
EFNFHEXBRARTERR
BEREEGRENVAENLE
HEZHRE B BEHEES
BEE REREAH AKH
EMFEBEREEEBRRE EA
UEERNES - - PIERNRE
LB ABBEFBRESMHHRER
Bt 5 3 A o

AEBNRE KB FAREBE RS
MEFPHETFREEMBR R Z=AR
e KR REKERS - RERD
REREMFENS  TELEBRRAE
FASENERERE VBRI (RIE
AV BBRRME2AEN ST BRRR
) AEERABE-—KLENMRLE
2IZE DR E M AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WEkoIER ()

(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
—EC-—-F Sl
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Revenue from construction contracts BERAAWES 174,824 221,225
The Group's revenue is recognised over time for the years REE-ZT-_—FR-_FT-_FTF+_A
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+—HLIEFE - ANE B R EERK
Unsatisfied construction contracts REITEEESN
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RZEZ—FR_ZF-_ZEF+A
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December =T —HYREHTEOERT CREK
2021 and 2020 and the expected timing of recognising HEBDRENK) HIR 5B K ERW R
revenue are as follows: TEHARFE AT -

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Revenue from construction contracts to be # FHEREERE S Hlk et
recognised

Within one year —F R 237,709 280,971

More than one year BiR—F 25,661

336,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT—-—F+-_A=+—HBILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from external customers based on geographical location of the
customers:

i K 2 B E ()

i 38 & B

TREJIRBEFPHEMEFIRA AN
BN P U AT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HILFE

2021 2020

—B-—F —ZT-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Hong Kong B 163,068 163,156
Macau B P 11,756 58,069
174,824 221,225

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, excluding deferred income tax assets, analysed
by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

TRAREEMAENMIEAE S D HF
RBEE(TREBEELEMSREE) WK
EED T :

At 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Hong Kong BE 746 1,566
Macau P 622 594

1,368 2,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaEkoHER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about major customers FTEEFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total REAARNEE TR B KZE10% A LB
revenue of the Group are as follows: EPWEIT
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-BA=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—EC-—F —B_FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Customer A BEFA 101,281 80,590
Customer B ®FB 51,116 68,467
Customer C BPRC N/A RER" 44,333
Customer D EFD N/A REA" 25,408
f Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of L BE-_ZTE-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEE
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. BERWm IR EBRY SR 10% ©
6. OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HWAFHE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-B=+—HLLEE
2021 2020
—EB=—F it
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITABUA 165 214
Government subsidies (Note) BT B (A a) 933 5,070
Net exchange (loss) gain bE 3 (B518) st F 3R (11) 48
1,087 5,332

Note: The amounts represented (i) the anti-epidemic fund received from the
Hong Kong SAR government amounted to HK$666,000 (2020: from
the Hong Kong SAR government and the Macau SAR government
amounted to HK$5,070,000) and (ii) the relief fund received from
the Construction Industry Council amounted to HK$267,000 (2020:
Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

W cB8OREBEE_-_ZT-_—F+=-A
=E+t—HIEFE (BEEBFERNE
BRI R INZE$666,0008 T (=T =
TFE G A B EBUTRORPIEE BT
BB ZEEES 5,070,000 70) & (i)
AREEFRTWEIMRUEES 267,000
T(ZE_TF  #|,) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. BHEBEEIMNREX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Costs of materials MR AN 55,949 61,929
Subcontractor costs 2B A 102,999 92,566
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EERAMRAXZ (A#:E9)
— directors’ remuneration (Note 10) —EFHM(HE10) 6,822 4,309
— direct labour —BEEST 16,986 16,986
— administrative staff —{THET 3,008 2,376
(Reversal) Provision of impairment losses on & 5 J& g FIE R E B 18 (B @)
trade receivables B (425) 317
Provision of impairment losses on contract & 4974 2 Bl {8 B9 18 #s
assets 51 273
Auditor's remuneration R GIEAT
— Audit services —ZHRTE 680 1,100
— Non-audit services — IERBUR 22 68
Depreciation of plant and equipment B K 2T E (Kt 14)
(Note 14) 407 379
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (Kt 15)
(Note 15) 812 685
Operating lease rentals in respect of MEMESEEERN K
minimum lease payments of KEHERES
rented premises 379 1,317
Expenses in relation to the transfer EIR ETHZ
of listing 448 4,403
Write-off of plant and equipment 8 55 & 5% 15 9 8H - 12
Legal and professional fees ERRBXER 2,321 2,674
Travelling expenses ERFAX 452 699
Other expenses H b S 8,033 9,772

198,944 199,865
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HEHA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance costs B3 BR AR
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITE AR 1,351 662
— Interest on bank overdrafts —IRITEZF B 467 285
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) —HEBEME (Kt 15) 55 33
1,873 980
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. EERAMX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-BA=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
. e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TET
Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T & - # < -« /E4T K 26, 26,137 23,023

Pension cost — defined contribution BRIKS A — R EHRETE
scheme 679 648
26,816 23,671
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of
relevant payroll costs each month to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$679,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$648,000)
represents contributions paid and payable by the Group at rates
as specified in the respective rules of the above mentioned
schemes.

BERAMAX (&)

REEE 2 BRI 08 B 1 D8 & 5 81 5P
RIUMBHEIMELTB2E ([RESF
2 1) EM e ERHEREE - KETEIME
EEAKENEEDRIFE  BEEA
NEEEE -t EKEmE
B B 121,500 7T 5 AR B 3 B A
KZ5% (ABIEE HZE) [[3RE 258
R MEBTMEHRFEEAHER

AEBERRMIAEREEREREHRK
RS - ZETEIMEBEERBIETA
EENESRAKEDRTHE - R —
R AEBEBEEMNREE - #
RN YRR REER/RANFAS - LR
%R B BR B R A BE R AT BT
R R IR L

HE—_E-—E+-A=+—HIEE
MRIBR R X 8% 679,000 T (=
T T : 648,000/8 ) IEAREE L L
MErBIRBER BTSN REE T R IE
R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: two
directors), details of whose remunerations are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining highest paid
employees who are neither director nor chief executive officer
of the Company are as follows:

BERMNMAX (&)

EEBREHFMAL

BE-FT-_—F+t-A=-1+—HLEFE"
ARETEERTMALEREMBES
(ZZ-ZF MBER) HFHOF
BEREREMBEREME 10 FR - K
BESHMER (LFARAEERE
BITBRAR)MFMARBNAT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET THT

Salaries and other benefits FekEMmERN 2,548 2,293
Contribution to retirement benefits RRAE T T B R

scheme 54 54

2,602 2,347

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
director or chief executive officer of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

VIHAARESHBESTHALBFH
BEXATARNGNSSHMES A
mF -

Number of employees

EE®AE
2021 2020
—E-— —ECEF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 2% 1,000,000 78 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FRAEERERNARBDNEETKAA
R MA LT (BREZRESR) ST
T ERMARINAKRSE BL R
TERBERAE(E
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-_A=+—HBILtFE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622) AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation)

The remuneration of the directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EENEKED (RBER(D

BERG) (BB EHIE622EF)
FE3BKER(AT(BREES
FEER) BB (FBEHE
622GE)MERIKE)

() EEZEME GtAERIEEERER
)

EEHHEIT

BEr_F_-_—F1+-F=+—H
IFEE

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

HiTES BUFHTES
Ms. Lai  Mr. Choy Hiu Mr. Lai

Mr. Chung* Suk Fan Fai, Eric ~ Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total

BErEr  BASR: EBERE AREE  BEHEE @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FEx FEx FEx TER TER

Fees ik - - 180 180 180 540

Other emoluments Hihfe

— Salaries and other benefits -HeREAMBT 3,669 1,095 - - - 4,764

- Discretionary bonus —-WiERL 1,000 4n - - - 1,471
- Contribution to retirement benefits ~ — iR (KEFI5H &It

scheme 13 34 - - - 47

Total st 4,682 1,600 180 180 180 6,822
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622) AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation) (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10.

BEEfBRER (BEEBARD
BMEBI) (BBEDE622EF)
F3BKRR(AT(BEES
FMEER) BB (FBEHIE
622GE)WERKE) (&)

() EE=M= GFAEREIEEERER
o) (&)

BE—_E_FF+-F=+—H

FEE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
BTEE BUFNTESE
Ms.Lai M. Choy Hiu Mr. Lai
Mr. Chung* Suk Fan Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total
@Rt RAFRT ERERE MMEE BEHEE @&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THL FHT TEL TEL TEL FHT

Fees e - - 180 180 180 540

Other emoluments Hihfie

- Salaries and other benefits ~H¢ R EMER 2,733 970 = = = 3,703

- Discretionary bonus -WiERL - - - - - -
— Contribution to retirement benefits ~ —RAKIEFI5H B4 3

scheme 33 33 - - - 66

Total far 2,766 1,003 180 180 180 4,309

& Mr. Chung is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to
the Group’s operating results and individual performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
both executive directors of the Company reduced part of
their remuneration for the respective years; while none of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

* BAEEARSE TR -F
—BEt-A=t—ALEEA
EEMNTBAEH -

BEEAT2EARAEENKLES
BREAREMERE -

MERTEEHRLSEFEN
HOFHM AR B BILIETT
EEMERERREREHZEC
E-_—FR-_ZE-_ZFTF+_A
=t —BIEFEERNEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ=

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP.622) AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.622G)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 10(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors did not receive any
other retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available the directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of the directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and connected entities with such
directors

At 31 December 2021, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, bodies corporate controlled by and controlled
entities with such directors (2020: Nil).

Director's material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

AR B B IS R MY A

T F+_A=1+—HILEE

10. EEFEZRER (REBEFB(D
ARG (BB EHIE622EF)
FE3BER(AT(BREES
FEER) BB (FBEHE

622G E) WEXRHKE) ()
(b) EFHEAENRBBIET

(9]

(d)

(e)

B AR & B 75 R 3% B 5E 10(a) T 4% BB
FHN EERFALEKBRE M

EfRARBENEEREN (=T
T HE) o

RESEERBMEE=FEH
HRE

BHE-_Z-_—F+=-A=1+—H
EFE AEEBUEGESES
AR 7 M [AE R 28 = 75 X ATR(E
—ETF @\

FEUES ESNIEGZEE
FRAEEERARTANER £
EXREMRZHESR

RZBE-_—F+-HA=+—8"
MENES EZHNIESEE
EZEFERBASEANER
EEFREMRZLZH(ZTEZF
F4E) o

EERXE  RHFHEHNTHE
Rz

BRARA M RERMIZ27FT IR ES
% RAAREEHERFRIE
E-_F-_—F+-_A=+—HL
FEMNAMNRETENUARER
EREIHNF BEEASEEKFH
MEARS THERAEHOTESE
HEESMENEN#E:
F o) o

=(ZEZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

The amount of income tax (credit) expense credited/charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

M. R (ER) A

RiFEE2ERERAT A RS

B(ER) AR :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TET
Current income tax: BNERFRIS R :
Hong Kong profits tax ERBMFH = 4,145
Macau complementary tax RIS TR - 196
Over provision in prior years BAEFEHBBEREEG (379) (314)
(379) 4,027
Deferred income tax (Note 23) EIEFTSR (B73£23) (2,704) (886)
Income tax (credit) expense FTE#H (B R) X (3,083) 3,141
(i) Hong Kong profits tax (i) BBINESH

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%).

RZEBE—-NE=A=+—8 &
BERBB T LERE (B
) (B75%) ([ZERD) -3l AW
BAEHESE - ZERNRZE
—NF=ZAZ-Z+NHEEKAZE
ZARZAHATIEFTR - BREBRR
FISHHE GEREEETED
& 2,000,000 % 7T & F| 7% LA 8.25%
BB R BER - T8 8 2,000,000 %
TT2 %M A 16.5% BB R AR o
REFEMBRFEHEGE ERS
MEBZEBNRMNESIRZBH
K165%(ZFB_FF : 16.5%) K
i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

Macau Complementary Tax

Pursuant to a tax incentive approved under Section 20 of
Decree Law No. 11/2016, Macau Complementary Tax is
levied at a fixed rate of 12% (2020: 12%) on the taxable
income above MOP600,000 (approximately HK$586,000)
of the Group’s operations in Macau. On 29 April 2021,
the Legislative Assembly approved an additional tax
incentive to reduce the 2020 complementary tax payment
by MOP300,000 (approximately HK$293,000) as a relief
measure for the negative impacts of COVID-19.

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be
reconciled to the (loss) profit before income tax per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

1. FEH (ER) A (&)

(ii)

BRFFEHRER

RIEEPIES 5 11/2016 57 5 20
BT EZ RISERE  BPFIE
1 78 B 4 iR 8 600,000 38 FI 5 (49
586,000 7% 7T) M) 78 & B R P £ 75
MERBRBWAZIL2% (T =T
F:NR%)ETEREBUK - R =
ET-—EWA=-+HAB ZFEE
BBEIIBEER BT =F
FEB M H T 300,000
SR PSS (#9293,000%8 L) » 1EA
COVID-19 B E s £M AT E I 1E ©

FRAER (E) BRAREA
225 R AR 8 B AT (518)
RFIHEDT

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ZEFTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
(Loss) Profit before income tax BrPTS R AT (B518) & 7 (24,906) 25,712
Tax calculated at the applicable RERABETERNTIR
tax rates (3,779) 3,943
Expenses not deductible for AT F0FR B 2
tax purpose 1,138 2,006
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (154) (2,222)
Over provision in prior years BAEFEHEBERE (379) (314)
Others EAh 91 (272)
Income tax (credit) expense Frissi (FH) Hx (3,083) 3,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS 12.

No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS) EARNINGS PER  13.

SHARE

Basic (loss) earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

IR E

ARATIRBE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—
BIEFETES KRR MERBEE (=
%—ﬁi : /43‘::1\) o

= —=

BREARBE (BR) 2R

BEREN (BE) BMEZARREB AR
16 (BB ENBRIAFAE EITE BB
BFHHAERL -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-TF
(Restated)
(FE7)
(Loss) Profit attributable to owners of the AR &HEH A FE(L (F518) % 7
Company (in HK$'000) (F#ET) (21,823) 22,571

Weighted average number of ordinary EBTE BRI T8 (A7)

shares in issue (Note)

145,708,904 143,500,000

Basic (loss) earnings per share ERER(EE) &ZF
(HK cents per share) (FR&AEA)

(14.98) 15.73

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)
earnings per share since the Company has no dilutive potential
shares during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Note: This is derived from the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 582,835,616 in issue during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: 574,000,000) after taking into account the effect of the share
consolidation with effect on 21 January 2022 (Note 30).

BREE (BB ANERERER (B
B aN ARAARRHEE—T——
FT-_A=1T—BLFEREAECH
BUENRG (T _FF &) o

Fiet -k DB EHE ST =-—F+ =8
=t+—HBLEFEEHTLTAERZ NE
15 8582,835,616 1 (T T F :
574,000,000%) 5t & « W&t KKk & OF
R-E-_—_F—A-_+—BARZTE
(MF5E30) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14, I N®E
Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Total
E3/958
RE N et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT F#ET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HBE_—Z_-Ff
+=—A=+—8
thFE
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZETF
—H—H 764 413 1,177
Exchange differences MEHER = 1 1
Additions NE - 108 108
Write-off s (12) = (12)
Depreciation e (249) (130) (379)
At 31 December 2020 N _FTF
T FH= E 503 392 895
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZHF
+=-HA=+—H
Cost B AR 1,211 761 1,972
Accumulated depreciation BEITE (708) (369) (1,077)
Net book amount AREEE 503 392 895
Year ended 31 December 2021 HBE—-ZT=-—f
+=—A=+—8
IHFE
At January 2021 RZTEZ—%F
—H—H 503 392 895
Exchange differences fEHER (1 = (1
Additions hE - 18 18
Depreciation e (273) (134) (407)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%F
T VR =] 229 276 505
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB-Z—-5+=A
S
Cost BN 1,211 779 1,990
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (982) (503) (1,485)
Net book amount ERMEFE 229 276 505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B RE R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—

—Ft+ZRA=t+—HIFE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation
of HK$407,000 (2020: HK$379,000) were charged to
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, plant and
equipment with cost of HK$24,000 and accumulated
depreciation of HK$12,000 were written off.

15. LEASES

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position relating to leases

14. e RRE (&)

BE T -4+ -_A=+—HIF
[ #E407,0008 L (ZE_FF:
379,000 7T) B4 A 2 AW KA [1T
B | Bk -

HE—_ZE-—FF+—_A=+—HIIFEE -
RN 24,000 % TR R B M iR A 25T
£ 12,000 & T S o

15. &

() BEERFEMBRRREIH

£l

2021 2020
—EB-—F ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
At 1 January ®n—H—H 1,265 812
Additions NE 410 1,138
Depreciation e (812) (685)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 863 1,265
Cost AR 2,068 2,408
Accumulated depreciation REITE (1,205) (1,143)
Net book amount R FE 863 1,265

Lease liabilities HESE

Current mEh 749 737
Non-current IERE 132 536
881 1,273

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions
to the right-of-use assets were HK$410,000 (2020:

HK$1,138,000).

BHE_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—
AIEFE AENFEREEESR
410,000 8T (ZFE=ZF :

1,138,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

15. & (&)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (i) REERGFETEBEBERBEIN
of comprehensive income relating to leases &5
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+—HLEFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T_FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BraF FET FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use REEENE— P
assets — office premises MAEYE
(included in administrative GTATTE A X)
expenses) 812 685
Interest expense (included in MEFRX 8
finance costs) (BT AR TSR ) 55 33
Expense related to short-term  ER5ZHATHE A BRI 7
leases (included in cost of sales (5t A$5%E B AN &
and administrative expenses) TR X) 379 1,317
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total BHE-_ZE-_—F+-HA=+—
cash outflow for leases were HK$1,236,000 (2020: BIEFE HEMHRSRTLBE
HK$2,041,000). 71,236,000 T (Z T _FF:
2,041,000/7T) °
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (i) *EENHEEEBREARLSN

accounted for

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 2 years with no
extension option.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

AEBHEABRAEME -HH—
MBIZ2FONEEFHETL T
REERE -

MEGFTZENEEHEALES
Z IR R R R AR - HE
W EMmIMEMRY - EHEEE
MEREEREEARSE -HEE
BETSREERNER®D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-—T—-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS 16 SHEE

At 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FHIT
Construction contracts EEREY 118,403 101,558
Less: Provision for impairment loss R EE R R
allowance (1,042) (992)
117,361 100,566

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on the Group’s future performance.
Included in contract assets are retention receivables. Retention
receivables arise from the Group’s construction project and
are held by customers in order to provide the customers
with assurance that the Group will complete its obligations
satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to provide
financing to the customers. They are generally settled within a
period ranging from one to two years upon the completion of
construction work. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
typically reclassifies contract assets to trade receivables on the
date of payment certificates issued by the customers when
such right of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

At the end of the reporting period, the contract assets that
are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months are
HK$22,070,000 (2020: HK$19,742,000), which represented
the retention receivables. The remaining contract assets are
expected to be recovered within 12 months.

AHMBEETBREAKRENCKRT RN
R IREDMREZEMNER BHHZ
BABURRAKENHARRE - ANE
EERRERES - BUREESTIEL
BAKBEZZEHBERBEFFE  #
UAEFREAEEBRIESQMEL
TREME MAFAEFREERBE - —
BRRBEIRRIBGNF—FERMFA
B BRRENKSBRIRER  G0E
EBBREBEHREFIA AKEAFE
BEPBRHNREEE B EZUGKERN K
SEGM (BEERFERERIN BRE L
BEEHODEREHREGR -

REEEAR - FBFHEBB 128 A %K=
A #EER22,0700008 T (==
T4 :19,742,000%87T) - fEEBIRESE -
Flegr A EEEBER 12EARKE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The movements of contract assets (before loss allowance and
excluding those arising from increases and decrease both
occurred within the same year) from contracts with customers
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows:

16 SHNEE (&)

RAFEREMBHREERF 1557
EXEFPAMNBEEZESY (HKEBR
wHE > TRER-—FERNELEZEZME
A Bz 28 mT

2021 2020
- —ZTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At 1 January ®w—HA—H 101,558 29,965
Transferred to trade receivables LEVE 2N fﬁ%ﬂ%”ﬁl (11,803) (5,377)
Recognition of revenue g %5 28,648 76,970
At 31 December Nt+=A=+—8~ 118,403 101,558
Movements in the loss allowance on contract assets are as AHNBEEEBENESMT -
follow:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
At 1 January R—H—H 992 718
Impairment loss recognised BRRREERE 51 273
Exchange differences PEH AR (1) 1
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—8 1,042 992

Details of the impairment assessment for the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

=t—H ii&ﬁ@xﬂfﬁ%ﬁaﬁa%ﬁﬁ’é%
BMBWERMES10) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 16 SHNEE (&)
The retention receivables (net of loss allowance) to be settled, RMEHKR  BERBBERFLEEN
based on the expiry of retention period, at the end of the FEUWRE & (FNBRE IR RHE) 7

reporting period are:

2021 2020
—E-——F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Within one year —FAEH 12,830 9,395
After one year —Fi& 35 22,070 19,742
34,900 29,137
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 17. ESRHEMEBEWFIE RER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FEfRRE
At 31 December
Rt+t=-—BA=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables (Note /) B 5 EWERIE (M iEi) 38,613 73,723
Less: Provision for impairment loss B ORE RS
allowance (2,008) (2,435)
36,605 71,288
Other receivables and deposits (Note i) H ith fE W sk I8 K ¥ & (KAt i) 1,291 1,188
Prepayments BT FRIAE 1,650 2,119

39,546 74,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the provision of supply,
installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings. The Group grants a credit period ranged from
30 to 45 days to its customers. The following is an aging
analysis of trade receivables based on valuation dates
of payment certificates or reports net of provision for
impairment loss allowance at the end of the reporting

EEREMBRERIE  RER

BN RE (&)

0}

85 BWRKR

Z 5 W R IER R RIS T
BREEREARGHEE TR K
HEERB - AEERERFET
MEEHNT30BE45H - T X
B R A B R AR R S KB B ek 3R
HHE BN E S EWIERR
DI (BB E RSB EE) -

period:
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
0 to 30 days 0%30H 12,826 30,072
31 to 60 days 31£60H 19,360 22,698
61 to 90 days 61£290H - 891
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 H - 1,486
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H 806 5,368
1 to 2 years —ZEMF 3,613 10,773
36,605 71,288
The fair value of trade receivables approximate their B REWGENAFEEER®
carrying values. BAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

17

. ESRHEMEBWRFRIE - BER
AR ()
() H5EEHE R

# 5 i 30RO IR E 1A T
A

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 30,226 58,883
MOP gl 6,379 12,405
36,605 71,288

Before accepting any new customers, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits granted to customers are
reviewed periodically. Management of the Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and
considers the majority of the Group’s trade receivables
that are past due but not impaired have good credit
quality with reference to respective settlement history.

BEMEAMELA AEESF
HEEEPNEREERREEP
REFERE AEHBAET
EFNEERE -AKEEREE
TOEREIRERENEEL
= UREEBENLCE RBR
AEBREIBDEBBERBER
BHRYFEBEELERRT
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AR B B IS R MY A

BE_T-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 17. ESRHEMEBWFIE  RER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FANRIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEWEEE)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss B 5 W RIEREE R EN#
allowance on trade receivables are as follows: BT -
2021 2020
:g: — ﬂi — 7 — E'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
At 1 January n—H—H 2,435 2,115
(Reversal) Impairment loss recognised &= #32 (B @) FEE B (425) 317
Exchange differences fER =2 (2) 3
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 2,008 2,435
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 HE-_ZTZ-_—R_ZT_FF
December 2021 and 2020 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to +ZA=+—HILEFENREFT
the consolidated financial statements. HEFEBHNERE B RRM G
3.1(b) °
(ii) Other receivables and deposits (i) HaEWREREZRS
The fair value of other receivables and deposits H A e 5 IE&BZ?EEI’J NS [
approximate to their carrying values. HEEmERE

Details of impairment assessment for the other receivables
and deposits for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

BHE_Z-_—FRK_Z_Z2F
+T-A=+—HBLFE HtE
W%Eﬁﬁémﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ
RERE B RS RRMTEE3.1(b) °
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AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 18. B R ZRFIBITERIN
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESRASEEY
At 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 12,028 11,927
Restricted bank deposits 2R HIRITIER 3,230 8,285
15,258 20,212
Cash and cash equivalents BehIRELEEY 10,653 18,718
Bank overdrafts (Note 21) RITEZ (B7iE21) (6,526) (9,461)
Balances per consolidated statement of BHiZEHEE) Y 45 B
cash flows 4,127 9,257

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (including
overdraft and trade facilities) with maturity within one year
from the end of the reporting period and is therefore classified
as a current asset. The pledged bank deposits carried interest
at a fixed rate ranging from 0.6% to 1.55% per annum at 31

December 2021 (2020: 1.5% to 1.55% per annum).

The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as
security for due performance under several service contracts of
MVAC system for buildings with prevailing market interest rate
ranging from 0.01% to 0.25% per annum at 31 December

2021 (2020: 0.01% to 2.1% per annum) (Note 26).

BRI RIEEEE FIRITUE
RAEBERBITEE(BEEIRE
SEM) MER  RREHARBH —F
WEIE ARESBARBEE - K=
T——F+-"fF=+—08 DEBET
FERIEN F0.6% E1.55% 1 [E & F 7
RAB(ZE_EF FHRI5%ZE
1.55%) °

ZBRHISRITF RIE TR IRITHIRS -
EREFEMBRREHARZANE TR
BEHWHBEYHRESER RZT=——
F+-_A=+—HHNBITHHFENEN
F0.01% Z0.25% (T =T 4F : F 7|
#0.01% E2.1%) (f1:226) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT—-—F+-_A=+—HBILFE

18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of pledged and restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values and
are denominated in the following currencies:

18. EHE AR ZRFIR 177
REERASEEY (&)

EEM M E R HIERT

FEVHKREERER

Bl s A -

FRERE MRS
FEMEE WA

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E2_—F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 12,935 24,414
MOP pealiaks 6,450 5,055
19,385 29,469

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

19. EZENREREMNRE S

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—-8
2021 2020
—B-—F —ZT-EF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Trade payables B S EMNFIE 25,370 30,359
Retention payables EARES 15,857 10,594
41,227 40,953

The credit period of trade payables granted by subcontractors
and suppliers range from 30 to 60 days upon the issue of
invoices or application of interim payment generally.

NEEREERELEZEMNRBERLEN
EEH BN FHABRZRAFT LN

R%E30E60H -
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AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 19. ESBENRERENRES
(CONTINUED) (&)
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based LA 51 S AR 15 2% 2= B HA sk FR 5 1 B 1 K
on the invoice dates or the dates of application of interim BE (6@ M) B E 5 e RIAERRE D47 -

payment, as appropriate.

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
0 to 30 days 0ZF30H 15,587 21,988
31 to 60 days 31260H 5,155 5,270
61 to 90 days 61290 H 1,264 190
91 to 180 days 91180 A 17 140
181 days to 1 year 181 HZE—4F 642 98
Over 1 year Bid—F 2,705 2,673
25,370 30,359
Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and R BEENRES B2 ERERER
payable at the end of the defect liability period of individual BHAREHTER (—RAEMBIEE T
contracts, normally one year from the completion date of the BB BAREET — ) XA »

respective project.



Wing Fung Group Asia Limited

Annual Report 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

R E e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT—-—F+-_A=+—HBILFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

(CONTINUED)

The retention payables are expected to be settled, based on
the expiry date of the defect liability period, at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

(&)

19. EZENREREMNRE S

REREHERBY  BYRESEH
RBERRNGERHBRAOT

At 31 December

BR+=—A=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Due within one year —F R E|H 5,525 3,763
Due after one year —F 15 5|5 10,332 6,831
15,857 10,594

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

B 5 e 3R IA K JE A 4R Bl & A Bk [ (B 22
HERFEMEE YA TIIEREFE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
= —BoTH
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
HK$ BT 34,267 34,230
MOP prdligles 6,960 6,723
41,227 40,953
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 20. EENFEREGTER

EXPENSES

At 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZTFF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Accrued staff costs e 8 TR A 4,358 2,817
Other accrued charges Hith ezt & A 1,340 1,742
Other payables H e IR 414 1,199
6,112 5,758

The carrying amounts of other payables and accrued expenses,
net of accrued salaries, approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities. Other payables and accrued expenses are
denominated in the following currencies:

HiENFKAREER FOREH
MR FEEEKRAEMRS  BAHE
HAPR 808 - EL Al B SR K AT B A
THE®EE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
HK$ BT 5,175 4,911
MOP sl 937 847

6,112 5,758
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. SRITER

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F#ET

Secured: BEM

— Bank borrowings —RITER 20,289 28,763
— Bank overdrafts —RITEY 6,526 9,461
26,815 38,224

The fair value of the bank borrowings approximates their
carrying amount as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The bank borrowings and overdrafts due for repayment are as
follows:

AR RE  MRITERN A FEE

HAREEEARD

RITERMEXZREENBRAOT

At 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
On demand or within one year BERSIR—FA 26,815 38,224

The bank borrowings at 31 December 2021 carried interest at
Hong Kong Prime Rate plus interest rate ranging from 0.25%
10 0.5% (2020: 0.25% to 0.5%). The effective interest rate on
the bank borrowings (which is also equal to contracted interest
rate) is ranging from 5.25% to 5.5% per annum (2020: 5.25%
to 5.5% per annum). The bank overdrafts at 31 December
2021 carried interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate and the
effective interest rate is 5% per annum (2020: 5% per annum).
The Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

At 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings were secured
by a corporate guarantee of HK$57,971,000 as issued by the
Company (2020: HK$47,971,000).

R-EBE-_—F+-_fF=+—8  Ri7E
FIEBABHREBFEMN0.25% EF0.5%
MFEFE(ZEZFF :0.25% %
0.5%) - SRITERWERME (MER
BHFR)NFHFE525%E5.5% (=
T _FFE  FES525%E55%) c AT
TE-_—F+A=+—8 "  RBTEXIK
ERZEBNETE  BERFFNEE5%
—E-TF: iﬂfs%) REBMN
RITIE A T B B AL

MN-B-—F+-A=+—08 BT
FEAR B HEM A RERS7,971,000
BT (ZZT T4 1 47,971,000/87T) 1
A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B RE R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

21. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of the amounts due based on scheduled payment
dates set out in the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any

repayment on demand clause) is as follows:

21. RITHER (B)

RIBE S g AE A TEE MK AH (2
BRERERERGROZE) I HE
BEODLAE ¢

At 31 December

R+=-—BA=+-R
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBTT
Within one year —F R 22,942 38,224
1 to 2 years 1224 3,873 =
26,815 38,224

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22. RARHE

(i) Share capital

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued

(N &N
ARBEEERBEHTERRRK

ordinary share capital are as follows: REEBMT :
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Total
BREE RO EE M@
HK$'000
THT
Authorised: HE
At 1 January 2020, R-ZE-ZF-A—-H"
31 December 2020 and 2021 TECRER T - HK$0.01
#+=A=1+—8 0017 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
At 1 January 2020 and RZZEZZF—-A—ARk
31 December 2020 ZZZZEFZA HK$0.01
== 0.0 574,000,000 5,740
Issue of shares (Note) BTG (17:2) HK$0.01
0.01%7T 75,000,000 750
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-—%+-A HK$0.01
= [d 0.01% 7T 649,000,000 6,490

Note: On 19 November 2021, the Company issued 75,000,000

ordinary shares by way of placing (the “Placing”), at a
placing price of HK$0.144 per share. The net proceeds
from the Placing after deducting of related expenses were
HK$10,152,000 and were used as additional general working
capital. These shares rank pari passu with all existing shares in
all respects.

Mt - R=—T=_—F+—A+thB &
A 7 LA B & A = % 17 75,000,000
BREmpk ((RE]) EEEBAST
f20.144 8 7T - RINKRABRAR 218
B i & FT1S SRIE)F 584 10,152,000
UL WREBEIN—REEES -
ZEROREFEERERMNE
BRZHAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MRS R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22. RAR f##E (E)

(CONTINUED)
(ii) Reserves (i) f#ME
(a) Capital reserve (a) EBEXHE
Capital reserve represents the waived dividends BEAREBEARTARE
declared and approved by the Company to the —tEFRKRRET IR & ER
shareholders in 2017, which are deemed as capital BERE  EEREHES A
contribution from shareholders and credited to the BREMNERBEL T AERR
capital reserve of the Company. RIE AN # -
(b) Other reserve (b)) ErEE

Other reserve of the Group represented the
difference between the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
as completed in December 2016 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax assets

AEBEMEEERER =
E-RFET-_ATEKHER
P 45 58 B /B8 22 ) O R R R
NAIFLAIRMN & AT ITARA
E{EMNZR -

23. EEFEHEE

VAN 7% PR VR B 75 B 5 R i O SR S P 1S AR

for financial reporting purposes: BEIN
R+=HA=t+—H
At 31 December
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-EF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

BIEFAISREE

Deferred income tax assets

3,071 367
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 23. BEFEBEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following is an analysis of deferred income tax assets LT ARRFABROIELEMSHEE
(liabilities) recognised and their movements during the year: (BE) REZFHHOH
Timing
Expected differences
credit loss on costs
provision Tax losses recognition Total
HAEE B
FRRE BEFE BARZ st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT T
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—H—H 211 = (730) (519)
Credited to consolidated statement of &t A%z & 2 E M X
comprehensive income 156 - 730 886
At 31 December 2020 R-Z_ZF
+ZR=+—-H 367 - - 367
(Charged) credited to consolidated (& B) A
statement of comprehensive income A EWER (74) 2,778 = 2,704
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+=ZA=+—H 293 2,778 - 3,071
Despite the Group has suffered losses in the current period, BEAEBRAMEEEEE  BEXR
a deferred tax asset arising from the unused tax losses of PR EE1818,748,0008 L (ZE =&
HK$18,748,000 (2020: Nil) has been recognised during the FE)MEEMNEEHEEE 2R
year in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing FARABLREBEOEBERRTE
taxable temporary differences. Of the total unused tax losses, BEEoaM RANESBERESD
HK$6,992,000 (2020: Nil) may be carried forward for three 6,992,000 B L (ZZ =2 F : &) A] 7
years from the year of incurring the loss, and the remaining EEBENFEREES=F HHRH
unused tax losses have no expiry dates. The Group has MIEBETEIHAE - AEEBLER
concluded that the deferred tax asset will be recoverable using BB ERBBIENERTEIRESE -
the estimated future taxable income based on the approved 15 BB {f a1 B9 R 2R FE SR B Uk 2 T LA MR [E] ©
business plans and budgets. The Group is expected to generate JEEt AEE G B 2022 FBE L EE

taxable income from 2022 onwards. U2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MRS R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24, RERHEIPMHBEITA

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEK AT ENTBEE
— Trade receivables (Note 17) —B S EWGRIA (H1iE17) 36,605 71,288
— Other receivables and deposits —E b U R RIE S
(Note 17) (Btet17) 1,291 1,188
— Pledged and restricted bank deposits —BEFRZRHERITER
(Note 18) (Htzt18) 15,258 20,212
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) - RERREFEY
(BtzE18) 10,653 18,718
63,807 111,406
Financial liabilities g =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BN ATTENMEAE
— Trade and retention payables — 8 S RIE R ER
(Note 19) RE® (Hat19) 41,227 40,953
— Other payables (Note 20) — E b &~ 3k T8 (K72 20) 1,754 2,941
— Bank borrowings (Note 21) —IRITER(HaZ21) 26,815 38,224
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —MHEaE#7F15) 881 1,273

70,677 83,391
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B RE R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—T—_—F+-_A=1t—HItFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. a8 & RERK
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash flows used in operations (a) REFFTARERE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Cash flows used in operations BREFARESRE
(Loss) Profit before tax BB R (E518) i 7 (24,906) 25,712
Adjustments for: BATEIEFE
(Reversal) Impairment losses on B 5 MW EIE (#E)
trade receivables VEREY R (425) 317
Impairment losses on contract BHEERMBEEE
assets 51 273
Depreciation of plant and HEERRETE
equipment 407 379
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {F & EITE 812 685
Write-off of plant and equipment — Hfl 814 28 & 3% 185 - 12
Interest expense MEFRX 1,873 980
Interest income FEWA (165) (214)
Operating (loss) profit before BEESEFHINLEE
working capital changes (E518) &= F (22,353) 28,144
Increase in contract assets AHEERLEM (16,886) (71,568)
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 K E b pEWEIE
other receivables, deposits and e RIBAHIA
prepayments A (3 hn) 35,543 (6,869)
Increase in trade and retention B S ENFIER
payables JE AR & 2 3 hn 277 17,758
Increase in other payables and B < 3R IE K
accrued expenses FESTE R E N 316 1,832
Cash used in operations REFMARSE (3,103) (30,703)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT—-—F+-_A=+—HBILFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. ZRE8HRE&RERMT (&)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities (b) FBELRERRMETH

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1t—HBLEFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Additions to right-of-use assets RECREEE
(Note 15) (K1az15) 410 1,138
() Net debt reconciliation (0 EBIEYER
At 31 December
BR+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 10,653 18,718
Bank borrowings — variable interest #2175 5k — 2 ) | &
rate (20,289) (28,763)
Lease liabilities — fixed interest rate & & & — & & F =R (881) (1,273)

Net debt BEFH (10,517) (11,318)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F 5

ARE B RE R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

BE—T—_—F+-_A=1t—HItFE

(0 EXRFEHERGE

25. GEBREREBRME (&)

Liabilities from financing activities

METBHHREEE
Cash and
cash Bank Lease
equivalents borrowings liabilities Total
Hek
ReEEY BITER HESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx THT THET
Net cash at 1 January 2020 N -TE
—A—-RzBeFE 28,071 (6,451) (826) 20,794
Non-cash interest expenses FREFEFL - = (33) (33)
Addition from new leases REFHENRE - - (1,138) (1,138)
Cash flows Heng (9,391) (22,312) 724 (30,979)
Foreign exchange adjustments SN 3 38 - - 38
Net debt at 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+=A
=T-RrafEFg 18,718 (28,763) (1,273) (11,318)
Non-cash interest expenses FREFEHX - = (55) (55)
Addition from new leases REFHENAE - - 410 (410)
Cash flows Hene (8,080) 8,474 857 1,251
Foreign exchange adjustments HNE TR 15 = = 15
Net debt at 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—%§+=A
=t—BrZafEFE 10,653 (20,289) (881) (10,517)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T—-—F+-A=+—HILtEE

26. CONTINGENCIES 26. HAREE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Performance bonds (Note a) EBHRFER (Kita) 12,254 17,343
Corporate guarantee (Note b) EER (K ED) 12,371 4,376

Note a:

Certain customers require the Group to procure performance bonds to
be provided by a bank in favour of them as security for due performance
and observance of the obligations under the contracts. In procuring such
performance bonds, the Groups is usually required to place a required
amount of deposit with such bank. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory
services to the customers, the customers are entitled to seek compensation
from the bank for the amount of financial losses incurred not exceeding
the amount of the performance bonds. The Group will then become liable
to compensate the bank accordingly. During the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, no call was made on any performance bonds of the
Group. Typically, the estimated consideration is not constrained for revenue
recognition.

Note b:

At 31 December 2021, the Group provided corporate guarantee amounted
to approximately HK$12,371,000 (2020: HK$4,376,000) to a customer as
an indemnity for two construction contracts (2020: one). During the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no corporate guarantee was being
enforced. Typically, the estimated consideration is not constrained for
revenue recognition.

Htiza -

ETEPERAEBLHRTRENBERR
BmAZBHRE  ERBIBETRETALE
TREZER ERBAERBOREE  NE
BaERERNFRRTER —SERELRZFT
Ko MARBRENE P RESENRY - A
EPAERMMELMBBRASBARITIRE
B BTEBENRESE AR AEEK
BHRTIEHEERRE RBE_T-_—FRK
—ECEE+ A=+ -HLFE BEEH
AEENEMBRHREES - —BWE - HaK
ENZ U ERR G -

ETY

RZBE-_—F+_A=+—8 x&E@R—%
EEREDEEMRYD 12,371,000 T (ZE=F
F 1 4,376,000 7T)  tEAMMERELH (ZF
ZZEF: BN RE - BEZTE=Z—FR=Z
—EFEF+ A=+ —HLEFEE TEBHHT
FERIARER — M5 B RETZRE
TERBR ]
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AR MRS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of
the board of directors and senior management of the Company
who have the responsibility for the planning and controlling
the activities of the Group. The remuneration of directors and
the senior management during the year is as follows:

27.

A 5 1 B
TEEEASHH

TEEBABRE/ARAEZTERR
REEEKRE  FHFRBREIRZH A
SENED EFXRSREEERFA
BT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2021 2020

=EB=—F it

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET T

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAEF 6,636 5,375

Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 1,471 -
Contribution to retirement benefits 3R RIE M &2 (7

scheme 83 102

8,190 5,477
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28. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 28. AR EIME A BNFE

COMPANY

The Company has direct and indirect equity interests in the
following subsidiaries:

ARTRATHBA RS EERHE
R

Issued and
Principal fully paid share
Place and date of place of capital/quota Equity interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation business capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
AMEIEE B BRITRARE AEE
WEAR LR REH EXBE Bx/RERA et R IEED
2021 2020
—E--F CZT-%%
Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited*  Macau, Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Provision of supply, installation
5 March 2007 and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings
in Macau
BRI TR (RA) - ABRRA* AP ZERLFE AA 25,0002 100% 100% WRMAETREKHER
=A%A REBZGHOMHE 2K
REE RS
Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited®  Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$700 100% 100% Provision of supply, installation
25 July 199 and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings
in Hong Kong
RETR(BR)ARAR BE —AARE FR 700787 100% 100% REEHETREMHER
tA=tAaA REBZHHMLE - R
REE R
Wing Fung Investment Management ~ The BVI, Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited® 22 September
2016
Wing Fung Investment Management ~ XE#4FREE: BE (0 100% 100% REZR
Limited® —Z-RENA
e i

* Subsidiary indirectly held by the Company and is the subsidiary of
Wing Fung Investment Management Limited

L Subsidiaries directly held by the Company

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year or at the end of the year.

* ARRIEEFEAHONE QR - I AWing
Fung Investment Management Limited #J
=N

# ARBEEFTEONE QR

e LB ARERERQE - RA
FEINFHER  ZEFHNBRAMESE
TTIERIEZRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—-ZT—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. AR RIBEMRR T
THE COMPANY
Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies RIF D EER) (B622F) MW ERT
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the statement of financial position of the KRB WP AR M E FEEEEHH T

Company and the movements in its reserves is set out below: N
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HKS'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE \
Investments in subsidiaries RETB A RRIKRE 37,966 37,966
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 521 1,089
Amount due from subsidiaries (Note a) FEUS BT B~ B F B (B ata) 6,614 4,045
45,101 43,100
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hib el g ~ i2e &
prepayments TEfT5RIE 1,512 1,505
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFAEEED 888 483
2,400 1,988
Total assets BEEMEE 47,501 45,088
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE - 536
Amount due to a subsidiary (Note b) S — BB B A BIFIE (A75ED) 5,918 6,082
5,918 6,618
Current liabilities RBEE ‘
Other payables and accrued expenses H b eI K ERTE A 1,914 2,138
Lease liabilities HEARE 536 556
2,450 2,694
Total liabilities BEHE 8,368 9,312
Net assets BEEFRE 39,133 35,776
Equity s
Share capital (Note 22) P (B aE22) 6,490 5,740
Reserves (Note ¢) & (W atc) 32,643 30,036
Total equity R 39,133 35,776

This statement of financial position was approved and

ARBRAARCEEETGN _T——

SACt - ARERERTBLEAT

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March

2022 and are signed on its behalf by: ATHREREE:
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan EEE B
Director Director EZE BE
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. KN E B AR & (4F)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note a:  The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected to
be recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

Note b:  The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected
to be repaid after twelve months from the end of the reporting

period.

Note ¢ Movement in the Company’s reserves

Kiata . ZREARBER N RLREHAER
HEHAREF T ERKKE -

BisEh : BAREAMIER - T 80T E R
WK+ = (A AR -

Mitc: AATEBHED

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
A7 E BEXRFEE Rt EB#E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 R-—ZT-_ZFF—HF—H 41,147 11,676 (14,938) 37,885
Loss and total FABEREZE
comprehensive expenses gt
for the year - - (7,849) (7,849)
At 31 December 2020 and HRZ-ZZT_ZTF+_1
1 January 2021 =+—HBRk
- —F—HfF—H 41,147 11,676 (22,787) 30,036
Loss and total FRABERZAEREZ
comprehensive expenses Feki]
for the year - - (6,795) (6,795)
Issue of shares upon placing B2 & %7 B 87T R% 1
of shares 10,050 - = 10,050
Transaction costs incurred in - S Fd & IR 1D EE £ B
connection with placing R G
of shares (648) - - (648)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZT-—%+=A
=+—H 50,549 11,676 (29,582) 32,643
30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 30. EHRREE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January 2022,
every four (4) issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each
would be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$0.04 each and became effective on 21 January 2022.

BERER-_ZE-—F— A+ HLBET
FREERIRE FBEAMNITERRSE
FN@GBREREENB TN ET
ERBETROGEMHAE—()RTRE
BE004BITWE RGN TR T
F—A-_+—B&E#-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

For the five years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 HE=-ZT—+&F - ZF—\F ZT-NF ZZ-ZFR-T=-—F+-A=+—HLREFE

RESULTS 4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —T-_TF —T—NF —T-)\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

Consolidated results mEXE THET FET FHT FHT FHETT
Revenue g 174,824 221,225 190,486 200,635 166,082
Gross (loss) profit (EB)EHN (7,220) 41,664 45,244 38,334 32,569
(Loss) Profit before BrETS AT (E18)
income tax v Al (24,906) 25,712 26,171 13,039 8,030
(Loss) Profit for the year & R (J&18) & 7 (21,823) 22,571 21,311 10,140 5,211
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=% —TITF ZTNF ZFT)/N\F ZFTF
Consolidated assets HEBER HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities =K FHET FAET FAET FHAT FHET
Total assets 4L E 188,110 216,618 140,739 130,598 74,046
Total liabilities wEE (75,035) (91,828) (38,615) (49,944) (52,349)

Net assets BEFE 113,075 124,790 102,124 80,654 21,697
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